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Group directors’ report continued

Business review and pnncipal activities

Marks and Spencer plc {the '‘Company’) s the main trading company of the Marks & Spencer group of comparies The Company and its
subsidianes (the ‘Group') are one of the UK's leading retailers of clothing, food and home products We employ over 76,000 people and have
around 1,000 stores ncluding Simply Food franchised stores We also trade in wholly-owned stares in the Republic of Ireland, Hong Kong and
China and have partly-owned stores in a number of European countnes

Further information that fulfils the Business review requrements of the Cornparies Act 2006 and includes analysis using financial key performance
indicators can be found in the iollowing sections of the Marks and Spencer Group pic Annual Report

- Chairman's overview onpages 1 -6

- Financial review on pages 8 -9 and 42 - 43

- Operating review on pages 16 - 35

- Environmental, Social and Community matters on pages 36 - 38 and Employees on pages 40 - 41

Marks and Spencer plc 1s Incorperated and domigiled in England and Wales  The Company's registered office 1s Waterside House, 35 North
Wharf Road, London W2 1NW

2010 2000
Em £m
Summary of Group results
Revenue 89,5366 90621
Operating profit before property disposals and exceptional (tems 8439 7689
Net finance costs (149 3) (164 5)
Adjusted profit before tax 6946 604 4
Profit on property disposals 81 64
Exceptional costs - (1359
Exceptional pension credit - 2313
Profit before tax 702.7 706 2

Revenue increased by 5 2% to £8,636 6m Operating profit ([before property disposals and exceptional items) decreased by 8 8% to £843 8m

Net finance costs, were £149 3m compared with £164 5m last year The average interest rate of borrowings dunng the penod was 5 9% {ast year
6 5%) Profit before tax was £702 7m compared with £706 2m last year

Profit and dividends

The profit for the financial year, after taxation, amounts to £523 Om (ast year £506 8m} The directors have declared dwidends as follows

2010 2009
£m £m

Crdinary shares

Pad intenm dividend 3 1p {last year 4 6p) 884 1311

Proposed final dvidend 5 3p {last year 5 3p) 1510 1510

Total ordinary dividend 8.4p per share (last year 9 9p) 2394 282 1

Pnncipal nsks and uncertainties

The key business nsks and uncertantes affecting the Company are considered to relate to competition from other retailers, the economic
environment, employee retention, new stores and the modernisation of the existing portfoio The directors manage these nsks at a Marks and
Spencer Group pic level and they are discussed on pages 56 to 57 of that Group's annual report which does not form part of this report, but is stil
considered up to date n this respect Copies of the Marks and Spencer Group plc consolidated financial statements can be obtaned from the
Company Secretary at Waterside House, 35 North Wharf Road, London W2 TNW

Cirectors

The directors who held office dunng the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements were as follows

Stuart Rose resigned 31 July 2010
lan Dyson resigned 14 July 2010
Steven Sharp

Amanda Mellor  appointed 17 July 2009
Graham Qakley  resigned 31 July 2069
Marc Bolland appointed 14 July 2010
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Group directors’ report continued

Directors’ responsibilities
The directors are responsible for prepanng the Directors’ Report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Compary law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for
each financial year Under that law the directors have prepared the
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (FRSs} as adopted by the European Union Under company
law the directors must not approve the financial staiements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that penod  In
prepanng these financial statements, the directors are required to

« select sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

* make judgements and accounting estmates that are reasonable and
prudent,

» state whether applicable International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union have: been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements,

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it
1s Inappropriate to presume that the company will continue N
business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain the company's transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial postion of
the company and enable them {o ensurs that the financial statements
comply with the Comparves Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the LAS Regulation They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other imegulanties

The directors confirm that, to the best of ther knowledge

- the Group and Company financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopied by the EU, gve a
true and far view of the assets, llabilities, financial posiion and profit
of the Group and the Company, and

- the Business review contamed in the Marks and Spencer Group plc
Annual Report includes a farr review of the development and
performance of the business and the positon of the Group and the
Company, together with a descnption of the principal nsks and
uncertanties that it faces

Audnt information

Each director confirms that, so far as he 1s aware, there 1s no relevant
audit information of which the Company's auditors are unaware and
that each director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as
a director to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to
ensure that the Company's auditors are aware of that information
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Directors’ indemnrhes

The Company mantains drectors' and officers” liability insurance which
gives appropnate cover for any legal action brought against ts drectors
The Company has also granted indemnities to each of its drectors to
the extent permitted by law

Qualifnng third party indemnity provisions (as defined by section 234 of
the Companies Act 2008) were (n force dunng the year ended 3 Apnl
2010 and reman i force, in refation to certain losses and habilities
which the directors may incur to third parties in the course of acting as
directors or employees of the Company or of any asscciated company

Employee involvement

We have mantaned our commitment to employee involverment
throughout the business

Employees are kept wall nformed of the performance and objectives of
the Group through personal brefings, regular meetings, email and
Charman broadcasts at key points in the year to all head office
employees and store management In addition many of our store
colleagues can join the bnefings by telephone to hear directly from the
Board These types of communication are supplemented by our
employee publcabons including, “Your M&S' magazine and DVD
presentatons More than 3,500 employees were elected onto Business
Involvement Groups (BIGs') across every store and head office location
to represent ther colleagues In two-way communication and
consultation wath the Cormpany They have continued o play a key role
In a wide vanety of busness changes, in what has been a very
challenging year

The fourteenth meeting of the European Works Councit { EWC?
{established in 1995) tock place In August 2008 This council providas
an additional forum for informing, consulting and Involving employee
representatives from the countnes in the European Community The
EWC will include observers attending from our subsichary companies
established in the Czech Republic and Greece

Directors and senior management regularty visit stores and discuss with
employees matters of current interest and concern to them and the
business through listening groups, meetings with BIG members and
Informal discussion

Share schemes are a long-established part of our total reward package,
encouraging and supporting employee share ownership In particular,
over 26,000 employees currently particpate in Sharesave, the
Company's all employee Save As You Eamn scheme  Further
informaticn on the Save As You Earn scheme can be found on pages
95 to 97 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report

We maintain contact with retired staff through communications from the
Company and the Pension Trust Member-nominated trustees have
been elected 10 the Pension Trust Board, including employees and
pensioners We continue to produce a regular Pensions Update
newsletter for members of our final salary pension scheme and the M&S
Retrement Plan




Group directors’ report continued

Equal opportunities

The Group 1s committed to an active Equal Opporturiiies Policy from
recrutment and selection, through traiming and development, appraisal
and prometion, to retrement

It 15 our policy to promote an environment free from discrimination,
harassment and victimisation, where everyone will receve equal
treatment regardless of age, gender, gender reassignment, colour,
ethnic or national ongin, disability, hours of work, nationalty, religion or
belief, mantal or cvil partnership status, disfigurement, political opinions
or sexual onentation Al decisions relating to employment practices will
be abjective, free from bias and based solely upon work cntena and
indmdual ment

The Group Is responsive to the needs of its employees, customers and
the community at large and we are an organisation that endeavours to
use everyone's talents and abilities and where diversity 15 valued

Employees with disabilites

It 1s our policy that people with disabilties should have fifl and far
consideration for all vacancies Dunng the year, we continued to
demonstrate our commitrment to nterviewing those people with
disabilities who fuliit the minimum critena for employment, and
endeavoured to retain employess in the workforce If they become
disabled dunng employment  We will actively retrain and adjust ther
environment where possible to allow them to maximise their potential

We continue to work with external organisations 1o provide workplace
opporturities through our innovatve Marks & Start scheme and by
working closely with JobCentrePlus

Essential contracts or arrangements

Market value of properties

The last formal valuation of the Group's properties was camed out in
Septernber 2006 Taking into account movements in the Group's
property portfollo since that date, the drectors are of the epinicn that
the market value of the Group’s fixed assets and leasehold properties,
at 3 Apnl 2010, exceeded therr net book value (including prepayments
in respect of leasehold land) by approxmately £0 8bn

Chantable donations

In line wath our Plan A commitments, during the year, the Group made
chartable donations to support the community of £13 2m {last year
£12 2m), excluding management costs and memberships These
prncipally consisted of cash donations of £5 2m (last year £5 2m) which
included Breakthrough Breast Cancer, The Prostate Cancer Charity,
Groundwork, WWF, Shelter, our Marks & Start programme and locel
commurity donations We also donated £1 6m (ast year £1 3m) of
employee tme, pnncipally on fundraising, Marks & Start and school
work expengnce programmes, and stock denations of £6 3m (last year
£5 7m) to a vanety of chanties including Oxfam, Newlife Foundation for
Disabled Chidren and Shelter

We also had a particularty successful year supporting the raising of extra
funds of £7 7m {last year £4 8m} for our charity partners This principally
consisted of cash raised through the fundraising actmties of our 125
Year Anniversary and by generating funds for our chanty partners such
as Groundwork and funds raised through the sale of stock donations to
Oxfam from The Clothing Exchange

Political donations

The Company 1s required to disclose any contractual or other
arrangements which it considers are essential to ts busness We have
a wide range of suppliers for the production and distnbution of products
to our customers  Whilst the loss of or disruption {0 certan of these
arrangements could temporarly affect the operations of the Group,
nong are considered to be essential, with the exception of certain
warehouse operators and the provider of the Company’s e-commerce
platform

Creditor payment policy

For all trade creditors, 1t 1s the Group’s policy to

- agree the terms of payment at the start of business with that
supplier,

- ensure that suppliers are aware of the terms of payment, and

~pay In accordance with its contractual and other legal obligations

Marks and Spencer pic has a palicy concerning the payment of trade
credrors as follows

- general merchandise payments are received between 19 and 26 days
after the stock was delvered, '

~ food payments are recenved betweean 18 and 25 days after the stock
was delivered and

— distnbuton suppliors are pad manthly for costs mcurred in that
month, based on estimates, and payrments are adjusted quarterly 1o
reflect any vanations to estimate

3

Marks and Spencer plc

It 15 our policy not to make donations to any political party  Accordingly
neither the Company nor its subsidianes made any donation to any
registered party or other EU poliical orgarisation, or incurred any EU
political expenditure dunng the year As defined in the Political Parties,
Elections and Referendums Act 2000 (PPERA’)

The PPERA gives wide definitions of what constitutes politcal donations
and expenditure  Accordingly, as a precautionary measure, to protect
the Compary, should the Company inadvertently reach the legislation,
by making a payment which could be classified as a political donation,
approval was granted at the 2006 AGM for the Company and tts five
principal employing companies to make donations to political
organisations and to ncur political expenditure up to a maximum of
£100,000 per year This authonty will expire at the 2010 AGM



Group directors’ report continued

Significant agreements — change of control

There are a number of agreements to which the Company I1s party thai
take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the Company
following a takeover id Details of the significant agreements of this kund
are as follows

o the £267m Medium Term Notes (MTNs) issued by the Company
on 28 March 2007 and £400m MTNs issued by the Company on
30 November 2009 both to various institutions under the Group's
£3bn Eure Medium Term Note (EMTN) programme contain an
option such that, upon a changs of control event, combined with a
credt ratings downgrade to below sub-investment level, any holder
of an MTN may require the Company to prepay the principat
amount of that MTN,

e the £250m puttable and callable reset notes 1ssued by the
Company to various institutions on 11 December 2007 under the
Group's £3bn EMTN programme contain an opton such that,
upon a change of contro!l event, combined with a credit ratings
downgrade to below sub-investment level, any holder of an MTN
may requre the Company te prepay the principal amount of that
MTN,

« the $500m US Notes 1ssued by the Company to vanous institutions
on 6 December 2007 under section 144a of the US Secuntigs Act
contain an option such that, upon a change of control event,
combined with a credt ratings downgrade to below sub-
investment leve!, any holder of such a US Note may require the
Comparty to prepay the pnncipal amount of that US Note,

« the $300m US Notes 1ssued by the Company to vanous institutions
on 6 December 2007 under section 144a of the US Secunties Act
contain an option such that, upon a change of control event,
combined with a credit ratings downgrade to below sub-
investment level, any holder of such a US Note may requie the
Company to prepay the prncipal amount of that US Note,

s the £1 2bn Credit Agreement dated 13 August 2004 and the
£400m Cracdit Faciity Agreement dated 3 February 2008 between
the Company and vanous banks both contan a provision such
that, upon a change of control event, unless new terms are agreed
within 60 days, the faciites under these agreements will be
cancelied with all outstanding amounts becoming immediately
payable with interest,

e the agreement between HSBC and the Company relating to M&S
Money dated 9 November 2004 (as amended and restated on 1
March 2005) contans a clause such that, upon a change of control
of the Company, any new owner would be obliged to gve
undertalungs to HSBC in respect of the continuation of the
agreement, negotiate revised terms or terminate the agreement,
and

« the agreement between Marks and Spencer plc and Marks and
Spencer Pension Trust Limited (as trustee of The Marks and
Spencer Pension Scheme) {the ‘Pension Fund') dated 25 March
2009 relating to Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnerstip
{the 'Partnership') contains a clause such that, upon a change of
control of the Company, Marks and Spencer plc shall elect either
to cause the Partnership to surrender its discretion over the
payment of annual distnbutrons to the Pension Fund or to increase
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the rate at which compensatory Interest accrues on any annual
payments that Marks and Spencer plc has elected to defer

Post balance sheet event

On 12 May 2010 Marks and Spencer Group plc announced a £800m
funding plan for its UK Defined Benefit Pension Scheme The funding
plan ncludas the fallowing contnbutions from Marks & Spencer

- Cash contnbutions of £35m per annum for the first three years of the
funding plan increasing to £60m per annum untl 2018 This has a
prasent day cash value of £376m

~ £300m of value through the granung of a further interest in the Marks
and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership This new interest entitles
the pension scheme to a fixed annual distnbution of ¢ £36m for 15
years commencing n 2017 and a capital sum in 2031 equal to the
lower of £350m or any funding deficit N the pension scheme at that
paint in time

- £124m of value through the transfer of assets from existing US$ debt
hadge contracts held by Marks and Spencer plc

A number of changes to the UK Corporation tax system were
announcad in the June 2010 Budget Statement  The Finance (No 2}
Act 201015 expected to Include legistatron to reduce the main rate of
corporation tax from 28% to 27% from 1 Apnl 2011 Further reductions
to the main rate are proposed to reduce the rate by 1% per annum to
24% by 1 Apnt 2014 The changes had not been substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date and, therefore, are not iIncluded in these
financial statements  The effect of the changes to be enacted by the
Finance (No 2} Act 2010 1s currently being assessed by management

Going concermn

In adopting the going concem basis for prepanng the financial
statemenits, the directors have considered the business actvties as out
on pages 1 to 43 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report
as well as the Group's principal nsks and uncertanties as set out on
pages 56 and 57 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report
Based on the Group's cash flow forecasts and projections, the Board is
satisfied that the Group wil be able to operate within the level of its
faciities for the foreseeable future For this reason the Group continues
to adopt the going concem basis In prepanng its financial staterments

Independent auditors

Resolutions to reappont PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors of
the Company and to authonse the Audit Commuttes to determine ther
remuneration will be proposed at the 2010 AGM

By order of the Board
Amanda Mellor, Executve Director
London

1 Septginber 2010




Independent auditors’ report to the members of Marks and Spencer
Group plc

We have audited the group and parent company financial staternents {the “financial statements”) of Marks and Spencer plc for the 53 weeks
ended 3 Apnl 2010 which comprise the Consolidated and Company Statement of financial posttion, the Consolidated income statement, the
Consclidated and Compary Statement of comprehensive income, the Consalidated and Company Statement of cash flows, the Consolidated and
Company Statement of changes in equity and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation ts
applicable law and Intermational Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs) as adopted by the Eurcpean Union and, as regards the parent company
financial statements, as applied In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully In the Directors' Responsibilities Statermentt set out on page 2, the drrectors are responstble for the preparation of the
financial staterments and for baing satisfied that they give a true and far view Our responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements in accordance
with applicable taw and Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditng Practices
Board's Ethical Standards for Audtors

This report, Including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose  We do not, In gming these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this repert 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our pnor consent
N wnting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit nvolves obtaning evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial staternents are free from matenal misstaternent, whether caused by fraud or emor This includes an assessment of whether the
accounting policies are appropnate to the Group’s and Company's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed,
the reasonableness of sigrificant accounting estmates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

In our opiNon

» the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent company's affars as at 3 Apnl 2010 and of the
Group's profit and Group’s and parent company's prefit and cash flows for the 53 weeks then ended,

» the Group financial staterments have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Urion,

* the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as
appled n accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Cormpanies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS regulation

Optnion on other matter prescnbed by the Companles Act 2006
In our opirvon the Information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for wheh the financial statements are prepared is consistent with
the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the folowing matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you If, in our opinion

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us, or

* the parent company financial statements are not N agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

2 September 2010
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Consolidated income statement

53 weoks 52 weeks

ended ended
3Apnl 28 March
2010 2008
Notes £m £m
Revenue 2,3 95366 90621
Operating profit 2,3 852.0 8707
Finance income 6 12.9 500
Finance costs 8 {162.2) (214 5)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 4 702.7 7062
Analysed between
Before property disposals and exceptional items 694 6 604 4
Profit on property disposals 2,3 81 64
Exceptionat costs 5 - (1359}
Exceptional pension crect 5,10 - 2313
Income tax expense 7 {(179.7} {199 4)
Profit for the year 5230 5068
Aftnbutable to-
Equity shareholders of the Company 526 3 5080
Minonty interests {33} (12)
5230 508 8

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

53 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended
3Apnl  28March
2010 2009
£m £m
Profit for the year 523.0 506 8
Other comprehensive Income.
Foreign currency translation differences {17.4) 331
Actuanal losses on retrement benefit schemes (251.6) 927 1
Deferred tax on retrement benefit scheme 71.7 2549
Fair value movement in equity of avallable-for-sale assets (3.0} {48 9}
Cash flow and net investment hedges
— farr value movements In equity 52.1 304 8
- reclassified and reported in net profit - (1198) (206 8)
- amount recognised in inventones i 48 {8 6)
Tax on cash flow hedges and farr value hedges i 259 8 3)
Other comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax (237.3) (627 9)
Total comprehensive income/{loss) for the year 285.7 {121 1)
Attnbutable to
Equity shareholders of the Company S B 2890 (1199
Minonty interests 3.3) {12

2857 (121 1)
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Consolidated statement of financial position

Restated
As at Asal
JApnl 28 March
2010 2009
Note £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 12 4528 4003
Property, plant and equipment 13 4,7220 48340
Investment property 14 224 248
Investment in jont ventures o _ ) 15 11.5 138
Other financial assets o o T T T 6 301 141
Trade and other receivables . . L o _ o 17 287.7 3368
Denvatve financial instruments . B T2 1329 2540
Deferred tax assets . 23 0.7 16
5660.1 58794
Current assets
Inventones 613.2 5360
Other financial assets 16 27752 26724
Trade and other recevables o S o 17 2814 2852
Denvatve financial instruments B - - 21 481 "926
Cash and cash equvalents 18 405 8 4229
41237 40091
Total assets 9,783.8 98885
Liabikties
Current habilibes
Trade and other payables ) 19 1,153.8 11,0735
Borrowings and other financial labtities _ o ) 20 4829 9428
Partnership liabilty to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme B 20 71.9 719
Denvative financial instruments B . _ A 211 762
Provisions ’ i T T 7 22 25.6 536
Current tax labiities 1202 789

1,8905 23069

Non-current iabilities

Retirement benefit deficit 10 3665 1522
Trade and other payables 19 2803 2438
Borrowings and other financial habilities 20 22780 21179
Partnership habilty 10 the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme 20 - 680
Denvative financial Instruments S o 3 3 21 - 30
Proviscns ST - T ) 25.5 402
Deferred tax lizbiities 23 126 5 2255
3,076.8 28506
Total habilihes 4,967.3 51575
Net assets 48165 47310
Equity o L o _ o
Called-up share capital — equity 24 712.5 7125
Share premium account ) o _ o 386.1 386 1
Capital redemption reserve 8.0 80
Hedgng reserve ) 16 626
Other reserve 5717 5717
Retaned eamings 3,1003 29712
Total shareholders’ equity 4,799.2 47121
Minonty interests in equity 17.3 189
Total equity 48165 47310

The financial statements were approved by the Board and authonsed for 1ssue on 1 September 2010 The financial statements also comprnise the
notes on pages 10 to 39

Marc Bolland -
Chief Executive

T
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Orcfnary Share Capeal
shara  premium  redemplon Hedgng Other  Retared Minonty

captal  account reserve reserve reserve’  earnngs’ Total nterest Jota
£m £m £m £m £m tm £m £m £m

At 30 March 2008 7125 3861 80 (36 9) - 35324 46021 73 46094
Profit/foss) for the year - - - - - 5080 5080 (12) 5068
Cther comprehensive income )
Foreign curency translation - - - {08 - 339 331 - 331
Actuanal iosses on retrement benefit schemes - - - - - (@271 (927 1) - @271)
Farr value moverment in equity of avalable-for-
sale assets - - - - - (489 (489 - (489
Cash flow and net investment hedges
- far value movement in eguity - - - 3172 - (124) 3048 - 3048
- reclassfied and reported In net profit® - - - (206 B) - - (2068) - {2068}
- amount recognised i nventones - - - 8 6) - - {86} - {8 6)
Tax on items taken directly to equaty - - - (293) 2549 2256 - 22586
Total comprehensive Income - - - 77 - (1916) {1199 12 {121 1)
Transactions with owners
Dradends - - - - - (3563 (3563 (02 (3565
Derecognition of financial iability * - - - - 57 - 5717 - 77
Transactions with minorty shareholders - - - - - - - 130 130
Transfer of exchange on net Investment hedges - - - 278 - (27 8) - - -
Charge for share-based payments ) - - - - - 143 143 - 143
Deferred tax on share schemes - - - - - 02 02 - 02
At 28 March 2009 7125 3861 80 626 5717 29712 47121 189 47310
At 29 March 2009 L ) _ M25 3861 80 626 5M7 29712 47121 189 4,731.0
Profit/oss) for the year - - - - - 5263 523 (33 5230
Other comprehensive Income . )
Foreign currency translation - - - 01 - (175 (174 - (174
Fair value movement in equity of avallable-for-
sale assets i o - - - - - B80) @0 - 80
Actuana losses on retrement benefit schemes - - - - - (2516) (251¢6) - (2516)
Cash flow and net investment hedges
~ far value movement In equity - - - 38.0 - 141 52.1 - 521
- reclassified and reported In net profit® - - - {118 8) - - {1198) - (1198
~ amount recognised In inventones - - - 48 - - 48 - 48
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - 259 - 7.7 97.6 - 97.6
Total comprehenswe Income - - - {51.0) - 3400 2890 33 2857
Transactions with owners
Dmwdends - - - - -  {2394) (239.4) - (239.4)
Transactions with minonty shareholders - - - - - - - 17 17
Charge for share-based payments - - - - - 285 285 - 285
Deferred tax on share schemes - - - - - 90 9.0 - 90
At3 Apnt 2010 7125 3861 8.0 116 5717 3,21083 4,799.2 17.3 4,8165

1 The Cther reserve” Incudes discretonary distnbutions to the Marks and Spencer UK Pension Scheme (ses footnote 4)
2 Includes a cumidative £34 8m gain {ast year £52 3m gain} in the currency reserve

3 Amounts racassiied and reported i net profit have all been recorded in cost of sales
4

The amounts derecogrised 2s a financal kabilty relate to the amendments of the Scottish Lirmited Partnership agreement on 25 March 2009 In kne with emerging biest practica for similar
ransachions by other companies this has been redlassified to other reserves See note 24 for further detads
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Consolidated cash flow information

53 weeks 52 wecks
ended ended
3Apnl 28 March

2010 2009

Notes £m £m
Consolidated statement of cash flows
Cash flows from operating actvities ) -
Cash generated from operations 27  1,349.7 13727
Tax pad {(120.7) (813
Net cash inflow from operating activibes 1,2290 12914
Cash flows from investing activihes
Acguisition of subsidianes, net of cash acqurred (5.4) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {352.0) (540 8)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 209 583
Rurchase of Intangible assets (77.5) {121 6)
Purchase of non-current financial assets - 44
Net purchase of shares held (n employee trusts (19.0) -
Purchase of current financial assets (118 3) (11
Interest received 27 127
Net cash outflow from investing activities (548 6) (596 9)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid ; 7 - T T T (1e34) (197 1)
Cash inflow/{outfiow) from borrowings i T ) - B 30.7  (258)
(Repayment)/drawdown of syndicated bank facility i - T 77 (5294} 10871
Decrease/(increase) in parent company loan i 15.8 347
Issue of medium-term notes 397.2 -
Redemption of medium-term notes {200.4) -
Payment of lability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (68.0} (151)
Decrease n obligatons under finance leases (17.0) {10
Equity dvidends paid (239.4) (356 3)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (773.9) {521 9
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from activities {93 5) 1726
Effects of exchange rate changes (2.1) 78
Opening net cash 208 3 1179
Closmg net cash 28 202.7 2983

53 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
3Apnl 28 March

2010 2009
Notes £m tm
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
Opening net debt 1285 (493 1)
Net cash {outiiow)/inflow from activmties (93 5) 1726
Increase N current financial assets 1183 11
Decrease/(increase) In debt financing 37141 (31 5)
Partnership llabilty to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (non-cash) - 5396
Exchange and other non-cash movements 10.7 {60 2)
Movement in net debt 406.6 6216
Closing net debt 28 535.1 1285
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (FRS) as adopted by
the European Union, Intemational Financial Reporting Interpretations
Commuttee (FRIC) interpretations and wath those parts of the
Companies Act 2008 applicable to comparues reporting under IFRS

In adopting the going concem basis for prepanng the financial
statements, the directors have considered the business actvities as set
out on pages 1 to 43 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual
Report as well as the Group's pnncipal nsks and uncertanties as set out
on pages 56 10 57 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report
Based on the Group’s cash flow forecasts and projections, the Board s
satisfied that the Group will be able to operate within the level of ts
facilities for the foreseeable future For this reason the Group continues
to adopt the going concemn basis in prepanng is financial statements

The following IFRSs, IFRIC interpretations and amendments have been
adopted in the financial statements for the first tme i1 this financial
penod

- IFRS 8 - ‘Operating Segmenis’ replaces IAS 14 - 'Segmental
Reporting’ and requires operating segments to be disclosed on the
same basis as that used for Internal reporting It has been
implemented by the Group from 29 March 2009, and has had no
impact on the results or net assets of the Group but has resulted In
revised disclosures

- 1AS 1 {Revised) - 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ i1s effective
for the year ended 3 Apnl 2010 The standard requires a changs In
the format and presentation of the Group’s pnmary statements but
has had no impact on reported profits or equity

- IFRS 7 - ‘Finance Instruments — Disclosures' {amendment)
I1s effective for the year ended 3 Apnl 2010 The amendment requres
enhanced disclosures about far value measurement
and iquidty nsk

— Amendment to IAS 23 - ‘Borrowing Costs’ removes the option
of mmediately expensing borrowing costs that are directly
atinbutable to a qualifying asset and requires such costs to be
captalised It has been adopted by the Group from 29 March 2008,
and has had no impact on the resuilts or net assets of the Group

The following IFRSs, IFRIC interpretations and amendments have been
1ssued but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group

- IFRS 3 (Revised) - ‘Business Combinations’ was 1ssued in January
2008 It will affect the accounting for any acquisiions made by the
Group after March 2010 Acquisitons made pnor to that date will not
be affected

- |FRIC 17 - ‘Distnbutions of Non-Cash Assets to Owners' was issued
in November 2008 It 1s effective for annual penods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009 This 1s not currently apphcable to the Group, as it
has not made any non-cash distrbutions

- IFRIC 18 - ‘Transfers of Assets from Customers’ was issued In
January 2009 lt1s effective for transfer of assets received on or after
1 July 2008 This is not relevant to the Group, as it has not receved
any assets from customers
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A summary of the Company’s and the Group’s accounting policies 1s
gven below

Accounting convention

The financial statements are drawn up on the histoncal cost basis
of accounting, except as disclosed In the accounting policies set
out below

Basis of consohdation |
The Group financial statements incorporate the financial statements of |
Marks and Spencer plc and all its subsidianes made up to the year end

date Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial '
statements of subsidianes to bnng the accounting policies used In ine

with those used by the Group

Subsidiary undertakings are alf entities over which the Group has

the power to govern the financial and operating polices generaly
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting nghts
Subsidiary undertakangs acquired dunng the year are recorded using the
acquisition method of accounting and therr results included from the
date of acqustion

The separable net asssts, both tangible and ntangible, of the newly
acqurred subsidiary undertakings are incorporated into the financial
statements on the basis of the far value as at the effective date

of controt

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gamns on
transactions between Group companies are elminated

Revenue

Revenue compnses sales of goods to customers outside the Group
less an appropnate deduction for actual and expected returns,
discounts and loyalty scheme vouchers, and 1s stated net of value
added tax and other sales taxes Revenus Is recogrised when the
significant ngks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer Sales of furmiture and onine sales are recorded on delivery to the
customer

Exceptional items

Exceptional income and charges are those items that are one-off in
nature and create significant volatiity in reported earnings and are
therefore reported separately In the income statement This includes
costs relating to strategy changes that are not regular running costs of
the underlying business and pension credits ansing on changes to the
UK defined benefit scheme

Dividends

Final dwvidends are recorded in the financial statements in the penod in
which they are approved by the Company's shareholders Intenm
divdends are recorded in the penod in which they are approved and
pad

Pensions

Funded pension plans are In place for the Group’s UK employees and
some employees overseas The assels of these pension plans include a
property partnership interest and vanous eqguities and bonds The
equities and bonds are managed by third-party vwvestment managers
and are held separately in trust

Regutar valuations are prepared by independent professionally qualiied
actuanes i respect of the delfined benefit schemes using the projected
unit credit method These determine the level of contrbution required to
fund the benefits set out In the ndes of the plans and allow for the
penodic increase of pensions in payment The service cost of prowiding
retirement benefits to employees dunng the year, together with the cost
of any benefits relating to past serce, 15 charged to operating profit in
the year




Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting polictes continued

A credit representing the expected return on the assets of the retrement
benefit schemes during the year 1s included within finance income This

15 based on the market value of the assets of the schemas at the start of

the financial year

A charge 15 also made within finance income representing the expected
increase In the liabilites of the retirement benefit schemes dunng the
year This anses from the lliabilities of the schemeas being one year closer
to payment

The difference between the market value of the assets and the present
value of accrued pension llabiites 1s shown as an asset or ability in the
staterment of financial position Assets are only recognisad if they are
recoverable  Actuanal gains and losses are recognised immediately in
the statement of comprehensive ncome

Payments to defined contnbution retirement benefit schemes are
charged as an expense as they fall due

Intangible assets

6 vana Goodwill ansing on consolidation represents the excess of
the cost of acquisitions over the Group's interest In the far value of the
identifiable assets and habilites (including ntangible assets) of the
acquired entity at the date of the acquisiion Goodwill 1s recognissd as
an asset and assessed for impairment at least annually Any impairment
15 recognised immediately In the income statement

« tv v,y Acquired brand valuss are held on the statement of financial
position at cost and amortised on a straight-ine basis over ther
estmated useful lives Any imparment in value 1s recognised
immediately In the income statement

sl o A s hos Where computer software s not an integral part
of a related tem of computer hardware, the software Is freated as an
intangible asset Capitalised software costs include external direct costs
of matenal and services and the payroll and payroll-related costs for
employees who are directly associated with the project

Capitalised software development costs are amartised on a straight-ine
basis over ther expected economic lives, nomnally between three to ten
years Computer software under development i1s held at cost less any
recognised impairment loss

Property, plant and equipment

The Group’s policy 1s to state property, plant and equipment at

cost less accumulated depreciation and any recogrnised impairment
loss Assets in the course of construction are held at cost less any
recognised imparrment loss Cost ncludes professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy

Aoy . 1t .y, The Group's policy 1s not to revalue property for
accounting purposes

Sl e

i + Depreciation s provided o wrie off the cost of tangible
non-current assets (including investment properties), less estmated
residual values, by equal annual nstaiments as follows

- freehold land - not depreciated,

- freehold and leasehold buldings with a remaining lease term over 50
years — depreciated to ther residual value over ther estirmated
remaining economic lives,

~ leasehold buidings with a remaining lease term of less than
50 years — aver the remaning penod of the lease, and

- fixtures, fitings and equipment — 3 to 25 years according to the
estimated Iife of the asset
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Residual valugs and useful economic fives are reviewed annualty
Depreciation s charged on all addtions to, or disposals of, depreciating
assets in the year of purchase or disposal

Any imparment n value 1s charged to the income statement

OoAsscte e pure s ko s Where assets are financed by leasing
agreements where the nsks and rewards are substantially transferred to
the Group (finance leases) the assets are treated as If they had been
purchased cutnght, and the comesponding liability to the leasing
company is Included as an obligation under finance leases Depreciation
on leased assets 1s charged to the income statement on the same basis
as owned assets Leasing payments are treated as consisting of capital
and interest elements and the interest 1s charged to the income
staterment

All other leases are operating leases and the costs In respect of
operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease
term The value of any lease Incentive received to take on an operating
lease (for example, rent-free penods) 1s recognised as deferred ncome
and 1s released over the life of the lease

Investment propertes

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation Investment properties are recorded at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any recognised imparrment [0ss

Leasehold prepayments
Payments made to acquire leasehold land are included in prepayments
at cost and are amortised over the life of the fease

Inventones

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using
the retall method, which 1s computed on the basts of sefing price less
the appropnate trading margin Al inventones are

firished gocds

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a
result of a past event, and it 1s probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation Prowvisions are measured at the directors’ best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obfigation at the
balance shest date, and are discounted to present value where the
effect 1s matenal

Share-based payments

The Group 1ssues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
employees A far value for the equity-settled share awards 1s measured
at the date of grant The Group measures the far value

of each award using the Black-Scholes model where appropriate

The far value of each award 1s recognised as an expense over the
vesting penod on a straght-line basss, after allowing for an estmate
of the share awards that will eventually vest The level of vesting 1s
reviewed annually, and the charge 1s adjusted to reflect actual and
estimated levels of vesting

Foreign currencies

The results of overseas subsidianes are translated at the weighted
average of monthly exchange rates for sales and profits The balance
sheets of overseas subsicianes are translated at year end exchange
rates The resulting exchange differences are dealt with through
reserves and reported In the consolidated statement of comprehensive
INCome




Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies continued

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rate at the date of the fransaction Foreign currency assets
and habitties held at the balance sheet date are translated at the closing
batance sheet rate The resutting exchange gain or loss Is recognised
within the income statement

Taxation
The tax charge compnses curren tax payable and deferred tax

The current tax charge represents an estimate of the amounts payable
to tax authonties in respect of the Group's taxable profits and 1s based
on an interpretation of existing tax laws

Deferred tax 1s recognised on temporary differences between the
camying amount of an asset or liabilty in the statement of financial
positon and (ts tax base at tax rates that are expected to apply

when the asset is realised or the hability settled, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s not recogmised in respect of
— the intia recognition of goodwill that 1s not tax deductble, and

- the ntial recognition of an asset or hability in a transaction which
15 not a business combination and at the time of the transaction does
not affect accounting or taxable profits

Deferred tax assets are only recognised when it 1s probable that taxable
profits will be avalable aganst which the deferred tax asset can be
utihsed

Deferred tax liabiities are not provided in respect of undistnbuted profits
of non-UK resident subsidianes where () the Group 1s able to control the
timing of distrbution of such profits, and {i} 1t 1s not probable that a
taxable distnbution will be made in the foreseeable future

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilites are recognised n the Group's statement
of §inancial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the Instrument

A Trode o cevan es Trade recevables recorded nitially at far value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost Generally, this results in thesr
recogniton at nominal value less any allowance for any doubtful debts

et Jor o o - Investrments and other
financial assets are classified as etther ‘available for sale’ or 'far

value through profit or loss’ They are intially measured at far value,
including transaction costs, with the exception of 'farr value through
profit and joss’ Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss
are nirally recogrised at far value and transaction costs are expensed

[N

Where secunties are designated as ‘far valtue through profit or loss',
gans and losses ansing from changes in far value are ncluded In net
profit or loss for the penod For ‘avalable for sale’ investments, gains or
losses ansing from changes in far value are recognised drectly

In comprehensve income, urtll the secunty 1s disposed of or 1S
determined to be imparred, at which time the cumulative gan or oss
previously recognised in comprehensive income 1s ncluded in the net
profit or loss for the penod Equity investments that do not have a
guoted market pnce In an actve market and whose far value cannot be
reliably measured by other means are held at cost

Investments In subsidianes are held at cost less impairment Dividends
receved from the pre-acquisition profits of subsidianes
are deducted from the cost of investment
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Financial habiites and
equity nstruments are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arangements entered into  An equity instrument 1s any
contract that ewidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its labilites

A

A ! 77 ¢, 7 ]- Interest-beanng bank loans and overdrafts

are Intrally recorded at the far value, which eguals the proceeds
receved, net of direct issue costs Finance charges, INcluding premiums
payable on settlierent or redemption and direct Issue costs, are
accounted for on an effective interest rate method and

are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent

that they are not settled in the penod In which they anse

+ can notes Long-term loans are Initially measured at far value

and are subsequently held at amortised cost unless the loan 1s hedged
by a denvatve financial instrument in which case hedge accounting
treatment will apply

Trac [ 2y e Trade payables are recarded intally at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost Generally this results in ther
recognition at their nominal vatue

(3 Fony oesyg e ends Equity instruments issued by the Comparny are
recorded at the consideration receved, net of direct 1ssue costs

Denvative financial instruments and hedging activiies

The Group pnmanly uses interest rate swaps and forward forexgn
currency contracts to manage its exposures to fluctuating nterest and
foreign exchange rates These instruments are intially recogrised at far
value on the trade date and are subsequently remeasured at therr fair
value at the balance sheet date The method of recognising the resulting
gain or loss 1s dependsent on whather the denvative 1s designated as a
hedging instrument and the nature of the tem being hedged

The Group designates ceriain hedging denvatives as etther

- ahedge of a highly probable forecast transaction or change :n the
cash flows of a recognised asset or liability (a cash flow hedge),

- ahedge of the exposure to change in the far value of a recognised
asset or liability {a far vatue hedge), or

- & hedge of the exposure on the translation of net Investments in
foreign entities (a net iInvestment hedge)

Undertying the defirtion of farr value 1s the presumption that the Group
15 a going concem without any intention of matenally curtaling the scale
of its operations

For those of the Group’s denvatve instruments stated at far value, the
far value will be determined by the Group applying discounted cash
flow analysis using quoted market rates as an input into the valuation
model

In determiring the farr value of a derivative, the appropnate quoied
market pnce for an asset held 1s the bid pnce, and for a abilty iIssued 1s
the offer pnce

At inception of a hedging relationship, the hedging instrumernt and the
hedged item are documented and prospective effectiveness testing 1s
performad Dunng the life of the hedging relationship, effectiveness
testing 1s continued to ensure the nstrument remains an effective hedge
of the transaction
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1 Accounting pohcies continued

in order to qualify for hedge accounting, the following conditions must
be met

- formal designation and documentation at inception of the hedging
relatonship, detaling the nsk management ohjective and strategy for
undertaking the hedge,

- the hedge 15 expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting
changes In far value or cash flows atinbutable to the hedged risk,

- for a cash flow hedge, a forecast transaction that is the subject of the
hedge must be highly probable,

- the effectiveness of the hedge can be reliably measured, and

~ the hedge 1s assessed on an ongoing basis and determined actually
to have been highly effective throughout its Iife

LY gt

'« 13 ~ Changes in the far value of denvative financial
instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of {uture cash
flows are recognised directly in comprehensive Income and any
ineffective portion 1s recognised immediately in the iIncome staterment If
the firm commitment or forecast transaction that 1s the subject of

a cash flow hedge results In the recogrition of a non-financial asset or
lability, ther, at the tme the asset or llability 1s recognised, the
associated gans or losses on the denvatve that had previously

been recognised In comprehensive ncome are iIncluded in the iniial
measurement of the asset or labiity For hedges that do not result

in the recognition of an asset or a iability, amounts defered In
comprehensive Income are recognised In the income statement in the
same perod n which the hedged items affect net profit or loss

3 Far v hext jos For an effective hedge of an exposure to changes
in the far value, the hedged item 1s adjusted for changes in farr value
attnbutable to the nsk being hedged with the comresponding entry in
profit or loss Gamns and losses from remeasunng the denvative, or for
non-denvatives the foreign currency component of its carmying amount,
are recognised in profit or loss

b .2 Changes in ihe far value of denvative

or non-dervative financial Instruments that are designated and effective
as hedges of the net Investments are recogrised directly

In comprehensive Income and any ineffective partion 1S recogrised

mmediately in the Income statement

Changes In the fair value of denvative financial instruments that do not
qualfy for hedge accounting are recognised in the Income statement as
they arse

Hedgs accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires
or 1s sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting At that time, any cumulative gain or loss on the hadging
instrument recognised In comprehensive Ncome 1S retaned N equity
untll the forecast transaction occurs if a hedged transaction 1s no longer
expected to occur, the net curmulative gan or loss recognised In equity
I1s transferred to net profit or loss for the penod

The Group does not use dervatives to hedge income statement
translation exposures
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Cntical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparaton of consolidated financial staternents reguires the Group
to make estmates and assumptions that affect the apphication of
policies and reported amounts Estimates and judgements are
continually evaluated and are based on historical expenence and other
factors including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the crcumstances Actual results may differ from
these estimates The estimates and assumphions which have a
significant nsk of causing a maienal adjustment to the camrying amount
of assets and liabilities are discussed below

LI SRR PR U The Group 1$ required to test, at

least annually, whether goodwill has suffered any imparment

The recoverable amount 1s determined based on value in use
calculations The use of this method requires the estimation of future
cash flows and the choice of a sultable discount rate in order to
caloulate the present value of these cash flows Actual outcomes could
vary from those calculated See note 12 for further details

S perrter Eob o Ty prant 3o agqun ent ano LOrpute softwane
Property, plant and equipment and computer software

are reviewed for imparment if events or changes in crcumstances
Inclicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable Whena
raview for mpairment i1s conducted, the recoverable amount 18
determined based on value in use calculaticns prepared on the basis of
management's assumpbons and estimates See notes 12 and 13 for
further detals

(. Deprecation of property plant and cauoment and arrorbisation of
compter softwares Depreciation and amortisation 1s provided so as to
wite down the assets to ther residual values over ther estimated useful
Ives as set out above The selection of these residual values and
estimated Ives requires the exercise of management judgement See
notes 12 and 13 for further details

3 Ceste «or et by of's The determination of the pension cost and
defined benefit obligation of the Group's defined beneiit pension

schemes depends on the selection of certain assumptions which |
include the discount rate, inflation rate, salary growth, mortality and

expected returm on scheme assets Differences ansing from actual
expenences or future changes in assumptions will be reflected In
subsequent penods See note 10 for further detals

v w sartd loyay o r oo e aeraaes Accruals for sales returns and
loyalty scheme redemption are estimated on the basis of histencal
returns and redemptions and these are recorded so as

to allocate them to the same penod as the onginal revenue 1s recorded
These accruals are reviewed regularly and updated to reflect
managemant's latest best estrnates, however, actual retumns and
redemptions could vary from these estimates
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2 Segmental information

The Group has adopted IFRS 8 - ‘Operating Segments’ with effect from 29 March 2009 IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on
the basis of nternal reporting about components of the Group that are regularty reviewed by the chiet operating decision maker to allocate
resources to the segments and to assess therr performance In contrast, the predecessor Standard (IAS 14 - 'Segment Reporting’) required the
Group to identify two sets of segments (business and geographical), using a nsks and rewards approach, wih the Group's system of intemal
financial reporting to key management personnel serving only as the starting point for the identfication of such segments

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the executve directors The executive directors review the Group's internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources The operating segments are UK and International which are reperted in
a manner consistent with the intemal reporting {0 the executive drrectors

The UK segment consists of the UK retal business and UK franchise operations The International segment consists of Marks & Spencer owned
businesses In the Republic of Ireland, Europe and Asia, together with iIntermational franchise operations

The executive drrectors assess the performance of the operating segments basad on a measure of operating profit This measurement
basis excludes the effects of exceptional items from the operating segments as well as gains or losses on the disposal of assets

Central costs are all classified as UK costs and presented within UK operating profit The executive directors also moritor revenue within
the segments To increase ransparency, the Group has decided to include an additional volurtary disclosure analysing revenue within the
reportable segments

The following 1s an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by reportable segment

53 woeeks ended 3 Apnl 2010 52 weeks ended 28 March 2009
Management Adjustment?® Statutory  Management  Adustment? Statutory
£m £m £m £m £m £m
General merchandise 4,186.2 (34.2) 4,152.0 3,944 4 (26 1) 39183
Food 44555 (39.6) 44159 4,282 3 (363} 4,2460
UK revenue 88417 (738) B,567.9 82267 62 4} 8,164 3
Wholesale 297.7 - 297.7 2723 - 2723
Retail 673.1 {2.1) 671.0 627 2 (17 6255
International revenue . 970.8 {2.1) 968.7 B99 5 nn 897 8
Group revenue 96125 {759) 9,536.6 9,126 2 {64 1) 9,062 1
UK operating profit’ 701.2 - 7012 6528 - 652 8
Intermational operating profit 142.7 - 142.7 1161 - 116 1
Group operating profit (agjusted) 843.9 - 8439 7689 - 7689
Profit on property disposals 8.1 64
Exceptional costs - (1359
Exceptonal pension credt - 2313
Group operating profit 8520 8707
Finance income 129 500
Finance costs {162.2) (214 5)
Profit before tax 702.7 706 2

1 UK operabing profit includes a contabution of £30 4m fast year £24 8m) in respect of fees recaved from HSBC in relation to M&S Money
2 Adustmenis relate 1o revenue sems recogrused n cost of sales for management accouniing PUIPOSas

Other segmental information

2010 2008
UK International Total UK internauonal Total
€m £m £m £m &m £m

Additions to tangible and intangible assets (excluding goodwill) 360.0 293 389.3 6118 402 6520

Depreciation and amortisation 3987 292 427.9 3844 2486 4000

Assets 8,873.3 9105 97838 9,1612 7273 98885
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3 Expense analysis

2010 2009
Before Belore
property  Property property Property
disposals  disposals disposals disposals
and and and and
exceptional exceptional exceptonal  exceplional
Items tems Total tems rems Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 9,536.6 - 19,5366 9,062 1 - 9,08621
Cost of sales (5,918.1) - {59181) (56902 - (5,6802)
Gross profit . i 3,618.5 - 36185 33719 - 33719
Seling and marketing expenses (2,216.6) - (22166) (20744) - (2,074 4)
Administrative expenses ) {614.9) - (6149  (5701) =7 B701)
Other operatng Income 56.9 - 569 418 - 415
Profit on property disposals - 8.1 81 - 64 64
Exceptional costs {see note 5) - - - - (1359 (1359
Exceptional pension credit {see note 5) - - - - 2313 2313
Operating profit 843.9 8.1 852.0 7689 1018 g707
The seling and marketing expenses and administrative expenses in the table atsove are further analysed In the table below
2010 2009
Selingand  Admurus- Sellng and Adrrires-
marketing trative marketing fratve
expenses  expenses Total expenses expenses Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Employee costs (see note 9A) 1,007 5 2513 1,258.8 9232 2305 1,15837
Occupancy costs 463 2 81.7 5449 4392 775 5167
Repars, renewals and maintenance of property 88.3 221 1104 766 191 957
Deprecration 3548 394 394.2 3435 ag2 3817
Amortisation 303 3.4 33.7 2486 27 273
Other costs 2725 217.0 489 5 267 3 2021 469 4
Operating expenses 22166 6149 28315 20744 5701 26445
4 Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
The following items have been included 1N armving at profit before taxation
2010 2009
£m £m
Net foreign exchange (gans)/losses (2.9) 36
Cost of inventones recognised as an expense 56835 54267
Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment . ~ L . . }
- owned assets ) L ~ - 3804 3715
- under finance leases . h o 13.8 102
Amortisation of intangibles ~ B 337 273
Profit on property disposals (8.1) 6 4)
Operating lease rentals payable
- property 220.7 2005
- fixtures, fittings and equipment 108 101
Exceptional costs (see note 5) - 1359
Exceptional pension credit {see notes 5 and 10} - {231 3)
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4 Profit on ordinary activities before taxation continued

Included in administrative expenses is the auditors’ remuneration, including expenses for audit and non-audt services, payable to the Company's
auditors PrcewaternouseCoopers LLP and its associaies as follows

2010 2009
£m £m

Statutory audit services

Annual audit of the Company and the consolidated accounts 1.0 09
10 09

Non-audit-related services

Other services pursuant to legislation ) 0.1 01

Tax advisory services ] 0.6 03

Other services 0.1 02
0.8 06

5 Exceptional items

The exceptional costs N 2008/09 related to a strategic restructure and are not regular running costs of the undertying business
These included £92 5m property-related costs ncluding onerous lease provisions, property, plant and equipment disposals, leasehold premium
write-offs and decommissioning costs, £32 3m costs related to the rationalisation of [T and logistics networks, and £11 1m redundancy costs

The exceptional pension credit in 2008/09 arose due to changes in the UK defined benefit pension plan relating to how members' benefits buld
up In January 2008 the Group announced that it had made changes to the scheme by capping employees’ annual Increases in pensionable pay
to 1% and changing the early retrement benefits for members who joned the scherme before 1966 There was a credt

10 the Income statement to reflect the impact of adjusting employees’ projected final pensionable salanes

There are no exceptional costs ansing In the current year

6 Finance income/costs

2010 2009

£m £m
Bank and other interest recevable 21 146
Pension finance mcome {net) {see note 10E) 108 354
Finance income 129 500
One-off prermium on repurchase of debt (see note 20) 135 -
Interest on bank borrowings 71 62
Interest payable on syndicated bank facility 59 410
Interest payable on medium-term notes ) 117.9 1139
interest payable on finance leases 7 7 ’ 5.3 49
Farr value moverments on financial Instruments designated as fair value through profit and loss - ’ 85 105
Unwinding of discount on partnership hability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme ’ 40 380
Finance costs 162.2 2145
Net finance costs 149.3 164 5
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7 Income tax expense

A Taxation charge

2010 2009
£m Em
Current tax
UK corporation tax at 28% (iast year 28%)
- current year 1703 127 4
- prior years (52 (107
165 1 1167
Overseas current taxation 61 51
Total current taxation 171.2 1218
Deferred tax {see note 23}
- current year 5.4 701
- pror years 341 75
Total deferred taxation 8.5 776
Total Income tax expense 179.7 199 4
B Taxahon reconcihation
2010 2009
£m £m
Profit before tax 7027 7062
Taxation at the standard UK corporation tax rate of 28% (ast year 28%) 196 8 1977
Depreciation, charges and other ameunts on non-qualifying fixed assets ) 14 (40)
Other iIncome and expenses not taxable or deductble - (101) 29
Exceptional costs T - 75
Overseas profits taxed at lower rates 53) {15)
Adjustments to tax charge In respect of pnor penods (2.1} 32
Total iIncome tax expense 1797 1994

The post-exceptional effective tax rate was 25 6% (last year 28 2%) and the pre-exceptional effective tax rate was 25 6% {ast year 27 0%)

8 Dividends
2010 2009 2010 2009
per share per share £m £
Dividends on equity ordinary shares
Pad final dwvdend 53p 790 161.0 2252
Pad intenm dmdend 31p 4 6p 884 1311
84p 12 5p 2394 3566 3

in addition, the drectors have proposed a final dwdend in respect of the year ended 3 Apnl 2010 of b 3p per share amounting to a dvidend of
£151 0m n ine with the requirements of IAS 10 - 'Events after the Balance Sheet Date’, this dwidend has not been recognised within these

results
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9 Employees

A. Aggregate remunerabon
The aggregate remuneraiion and associated costs of Group employees were

2010 2009
Total Total
£m £m
Wages and salanes 1,079.7 9782
Socal secunty costs 73.2 691
Pension costs (see note 10) 573 67 2
Share-based payments (see note 11) 285 143
Employee welfare and other personnel costs 36.2 378
Ex-gratia costs 3.6 84
Capitalised staif costs' (197 {21 3)
Aggregate remuneration 1,2588 1,1537
Exceptional redundancy costs (see note 5) - 11
Exceptional pension credt {see note 5) - {231 3)
Total 1,258 8 9335
1 Suaff costs are capialised  the development of mManghle assets - see note 1
Details of key management compensation are given in note 29
B Average number of employees
2010 2009
UK stores
- managerment and supervisory categores 5,396 5,528
—other 61,946 53,969
UK head office
— rmanagement and supervsory categones 2,389 2,577
- other N2 1,036
Overseas 5,624 4,754
Total average number of employees 76,267 77,864

If the number of hours worked was converted on the basis of a normal worlkang week, the equivalent average number of fll-time employess would
have been 52,994 {ast year 54,153}

C. Directors’ emoluments
Emoluments of directors of the Company are summansed below Further details are given in the Marks and Spencer Group plc Anrual report
Remuneration report on pages 58 to 71

2010 2009

£000 £000
Highest paid director 2,606 1,765
Aggregate emoluments 4,721 2,400

One drrector (fast year one) accrued retrement benefits under a defined benefit scheme
The highest paid director has not exercised any share options dunng the current and pnor years
The highest paid director was awarded 1,191,364 performance shares (ast year 1,184,486) in relation to the Group's long-term incentive plan
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10 Retirement benefits

The Group provides pension arrangements for the benefit of its UK employees through the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme This has a
defined benefit section, which was closed 1o new entrants with eflect from 1 Apnl 2002, and a defined contnbution section which has been cpen
to new members with effect from 1 Apnl 2003

The defined benefit sechon operates on a final salary basis and at the year end had some 15,000 active members {ast year 21,000}, 56,000
deferred members (last year 57,000) and 47,000 pensioners (last year 42,000) At the year end, the defined contnbution section had some 8,000
active members (last year 8,000) and some 1,000 deferred members {ast year 1,000)

The Group also operates a small funded defined benefit pension scheme in the Republic of Irefand  Retirement benefits alse include a UK post-
retrement healthcare scheme and unfunded retrement benefits

Within the total Group retirement benefit cost, excluding the excepticnal pension credt, of £46 5m (fast year £31 8m), £27 O (ast year £14 Om)
relates 1o the UK defined benefit section, £12 3m (ast year £13 Om) to the UK defined contnbution section and £7 2m (ast year £24 8m} to other
retirernent benefit schemes

A. Pensions and other post-retirement liabilihes

2010 2009

£m £m

Total market value of assets 49486 39770
Present value of scheme llabilit:es (6,298.6) (4,1124)
Net funded pension plan deficit {3500) (13564)
Unfunded retirement benefits ©9) (10
Post-retrement healthcare {15 86) (158
Net retirement benefit deficit (3665) (1522)

B Financial assumptions

A full actuanal valuation of the UK Defined Benefit Pension Scheme was carned out at 31 March 2009 and showed a deficit of £1 3bn

A funding plan of £800m has been agreed with the Trustees The difference between the valuation and the funding plan 1s expected to be met by
investrment returns on the existing assets of the pension scheme The financial assumplions for the UK scheme and the most recent actuanal
valuations of the other post-retrement schemes have been updated by independent qualified actuanes to take account of the requirements of IAS
19 - '‘Retirement Benefits’ in order to assess the habilties of the schemes

2010 2008
% %
Rate of Increase In salanes 1.0 10
Rate of Increase in pensions in payment for service
- pre-Apnl 1997 27 26
- between April 1997 and July 2005 3.5 29
- post-July 2005 2.3 23
Discount rate 55 68
Inflation rate 3.6 29
Long-term healthcare cost Increases 8.6 79

The amount of the deficit vanes if the main financial assumptions change, particularly the discount rate If the discount rate increased/ decreased
by 0 1% the 1AS 19 defictt would decrease/increase by ¢ £30m

C Demographic assumptions

The demographic assumptions are In line with those adopted for the last formal actuanal valuation of the scheme (31 March 2009) One of the
most significant demographic assumptions underlying the valuation 1s mortality The post-retrement mortality assumphons are based on an
analysis of the pensioner mortality trends under the scheme for the penod to March 2009 updated to allow for anticipated longevity Improvernents
over the subsequent years The specific mortality rates used are based on the SAPS tables, adiusted to allow for the expenence of scheme
pensioners The Iife expectancies undertying the valuation are as follows

2010 2009
yoars years

Current pensioners (at age 65) -males 219 212
- females ’ 233 236

Future pensioners (at age 65) - males 231 220
- females 242 243
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10 Retirement benefits continued

D. Analysis of assets and expected rates of retum
The major categones of assets as a percentage of total plan assets are

2010 2009 2010 2009
Em £rm % %
Property partnership interest 631.7 5298 13 13
UK equities 415.7 4808 8 12
Overseas equities 1,283.4 644 3 26 16
Govemment bonds 53.9 127 2 1 3
Corporate bonds 25208 22780 5 58
Swaps’ 2451 (2149 5) 5)
Cash and other 288.2 1318 6 3
4948.6 39770 100 100
1 The swaps hedge interest and inflation rate exposures within tha scheme s Labdlies
The expected long-term rates of return are
2010 2009
% %
Property partnership interest 51 71
UK equties ) i 84 80
Cverseas equities 84 80
Govemmentbends o 3 45 49
Comporatebonds ) ’ 55 68
Swaps T ) i 4.5 42
Cash and other 44 47
Overall expected return 65 72

The overall expected retum on assets assumption is denved as the weighted average of the expectad retums from each of the man asset classes
The expected return for each asset class reflects a combination of histoncal performance analysis, the forward-looking views of financial markets
{as suggested by the yields available) and the wiews of investment organisations Consideration is also given to the rate of retum expected to be
avalable for renvestment

At year end, the UK scheme indirectly held 232,042 {ast year 369,793) ordinary shares in the Company through ts investment in an Aquila Life UK
Equity Index Fund

E Analysis of amount charged against profits

2010 2000
£m £m
Operating cost
Curmrent service cost 56.3 722
Curtaiment charge/(gain} 1.0 50
Exceptional pension credit (see note 5) - (231 3}
57.3 (164 1)
Finance cost
Expected retum on plan assets ) ) (281.4) (334 6)
Interest on scheme liabilities i ) 2706 299 2
Net finance income (10.8} (35 4)
Total 465 (199 5)
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10 Retirement benefits continued

F Scheme assets
Changes in the far value of the scheme assets are as follows

2010 2009
£m Em
Farr value of scheme assets at start of year 39770 50455
Expected retun on scheme assets! 2814 3346
Employer contnbutions? 827 921
Contnbutions from scheme members - 20
Benefits paid (2570} (226D)
Actuanal gan/foss) 8677 (1,2803)
Exchange movement {32) 96
Fair value of scheme assets at end of year 49486 39770

The actual retum on schame assets was £1 149 1m fast year loss of £945 7m)

2 In2007/08 the Group agreed to pre fund £200 Om of its annual contnbution to the UK Defined Benefit Pension Scheme for the next three years The prepayment 1s in respect
of annual contnbutions to the UK scheme at the rate of 23 2% of pensionable salanes up to 30 September 2010 and then 22 8% up to the next financal year It s estmated that
approxmately £55 Om of the prepayment will refate to the year ended 2 Apnl 2011

G Retirement benefit obligations
Changes In the present value of retirement benefit obligations are as follows

2010 2009
£m £m
Present value of oblgaiion at start of year 41292 45620
Current service cost 56.3 722
Curtaiment charge/igan) 1.0 1)
Exceptional pension credit - {231 3)
Interest cost 270.6 2992
Contnbutions from scheme mambers - 20
Benefits pad N . i o o (257 O} (226 5)
Actuand loss/{gain} o o o 1,1193  (3532)
Exchange movement ’ ) o @3 98
Present value of obligation at end of year 53151 4,1292
Analysed as
Present value of pension scheme liabilities 52986 4,1124
Unfunded pension plans 0.9 10
Post-retrement healthcare 156 158
Present value of obligation at end of year 53151 41292
H Cumulative actuanal gamns and losses recognised in equity
2010 2009
£m £m
Loss at start of year {1,257.3) (3302
Net actuanal losses recognised in the year (251.6) ©27 1)
Loss at end of year {1,508 9} (1,257 3)
| History of expenence gamns and losses
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m Em

Expenence adjustments ansing on scheme assets . N 867.7 {1,280 3} (422 6} (80 4) 4543
Expenence gains/{losses) ansing on scheme Labilities i . 36.2 812 {61 5) 188 200
Changes in assurmptions undertying the present value of scheme habiliies {1,155 5) 2720 10885 530 {643 6}
Actuanal (losses)/gains recognised in equity {251 6} Q27 1) 605 4 (86) {169 3}
Far value of scheme assets 49486 39770 50455 52275 46062
Present value of scheme liabilities (52086) (4,1124) {4,5423) (54870) (53813
Pension scheme (deficit}/asset (350.0) {135 4} 503 2 (259 5) (775 1)
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11 Share-based payments

The charge for share-based payrments for the year was £28 5m (ast year £14 3m) Further detais of the option and share schemes that the Group
operates are provided in the Remuneration repart on pages 68 to 71 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Repert

A Save As You Earn Share Option Scheme

Under the terms of the scheme, the Board may offer options to purchase ordinary shares in the Company once in each financial year to those
employses who enter into an HM Revenue & Customs (HMRC) approved Save As You Eam {SAYE) savings contract HMRC rules

mit the maxamum amount saved to £250 per month The price at which options may be offered 1s 80% of the average mid-market prce

for three conseculive dealing days preceding the offer date The optiens may normally be exercised dunng the period of six moniths after

the completion of the SAYE contract, either three or five years after entenng the scherme

2010 2009

Waeighted Weightea

Number of average Number of average

oplions  exercise pnce opbions ExereIse pnee

Outstanding at beginruing of the penod 57,863,061 262.2p 28,444,760 403 1p
Granted 8,566,762 2020p 42,551,459 2030p
Exercised (3,544,310} 2609p (2,075,204) 2327p
Forfeted (5,052,662} 277.6p (10,958,637) 456 4p
Expired (5,272,290} 309.8p (©9,317) 2618p
Qutstanding at end of the penod 52,560,561 2499p 57,863,061 252 2p
Exercisable at end of penod 1,705,532 486.7p 6,169,324 296 9p

For SAYE share options exercised during the penod, the weighted average share prce at the date of exercise was 360 4p {ast year 296 2p)

The far values of the options granted dunng the year have been calculated using the Black-Scholes rmodel assuming the inputs
shown below

2010 2008

3-yaar plan 3 year plan 5 year plan
Grant date Nov 09 Nov 8 Nov 08
Share pnce at grant date 365p 253p 253p
Exercise pnce 292p 203p 203p
Option Ife In years 3 years 3 years 5 years
Risk-free rate 1.6% 29% 3 2%
Expected volatility 44.1% 39 2% 334%
Expected dvidend yield ) 4.1% 8 9% 8 9%
Far value of option 113p 54 6p 439p

Volatiity has been estimated by takung the histonc volatility in the Comparny's share price over a three or five year penod

The resulting fair value 1s expensed over the service penod of three or five years on the assumption that 20% of options will lapse over the service
penod as employees leave the Group

Outstanding options granted under the UK Employees’ SAYE Scheme are as follows

Waphted averaga remanng

Number of options contractual ite fyears)

Options granted 2010 2009 2010 2009 Option pace
January 2004 i - 2,748,699 - 03 228p
January 2005 312,805 2,705,890 0.2 13 280p
January 2006 i 1,471,579 5,089,994 1.2 0¢ 349p
anuary 2007 N 2,016,402 2,381,588 09 20 559p
January 2008 2,440,739 3,114,069 20 30 517p
January 2009 38,009,851 41,822,821 30 40 203p
January 2010 8,309,185 - 32 - 292p

52,560,561 57,863,061 29 33 250p
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11 Share-based payments continued

B Executive Share Option Scheme

Under the tenms of the Executive Share Option Scheme, last approved by shareholders in 2005, the Board may offer options to purchase ordinary
shares in Marks and Spencer Group plc to executive directors and senior managers at the market price on a date to be determined pnor to the
date of the offer No further options may be granted under any schemes other than the 2005 scheme No awards have been macie under the
2005 scheme Further detals are set out in the Remuneration report on page 64 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report

Performance targets are assessed over a three year penod from the date of grant with no ability to retest any grants Once options have vested
they can be exercised dunng the penod up to 10 years from grant date

2010 2009

Weighted Weighted

Number of average average

ophons exercise pnce  Number of options exercise pnee

Ouistanding at beginning of the penod 8,632,783 336.8p 9,623,518 341 0p
Exercised (977,352) 328.0p (142,559} 343 9p
Forfested (1,159,280) 3450p {678,888} 340 7p
Expired (98,880} 358 0p (169,288} 550 3p
Qutstanding at end of the penod 6,397,261 336.8p 8,632,783 336 8p
Exercisable at end of penod 6,397,261 336.8p 8,632,783 336 8p

For executive share options exercised during the penod, the weighted average share prce at the date of exercise was 370 8p
{last year 3395 3p}

Qutstanding options granted under all Executive Share Option Schemes are as follows

Waghted average remaining

Number of options oontragtual le (years)

Options granted 2010 2009 2010 2009 Opuon pnce
1997 Scheme
June 1999 - 98,880 - 03 358p
2000 Scheme
September 2000 - 232 - 15 2150
June 2001 65,581 136,989 1.3 23 256p
December 2001 18,087 18,087 1.8 28 350p
2002 Scheme
June 2002 421,031 579,237 23 33 350p
Nevember 2002 14,042 47,180 27 37 353p
June 2003 N 1,903,230 1,398,584 33 43  297p
November 2003 11,390 36,109 37 47  270p
February 2004 33,111 33,111 39 49  270p
July 2004 3,443,824 4417613 43 "7 53 347p
Novernber 2004 533,164 806,193 47 57 337p
Jure 2005 753,801 1,061,608 53 63 352p

6,397,261 B,632,783 4.1 50 337p

C Performance Share Plan

The Performance Share Plan 1s the primary long-term incentive plan for approximately 100 of the most senior managers and was first approved by
shareholgers 1n 2006 Under the plan, annual awards, based on a percentage of salary, may be offerad The extent to which the awards vest 1s
based on adjusted earnings per share growth over three years The value of any dividends earned on the vested shares dunng the three years wil
also be pad on vesting Further detalls are set out n the Remuneration repert on page 63 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report
Awards under this scheme have been made in gach year since 2006

Dunng the year, 7,617,094 shares {ast year 6,835,938) were awarded under the plan The weighted average far value of the shares awarded was
280 8p (last year 368 9p)
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11 Share-based payments continued |

D Deferred Share Bonus Plan

The Deterred Share Bonus Plan was introduced in 2005/06 as part of the Annual Bonus Scheme for approxmately 450 of the most semor !
managers As part of the scheme, the managers are required to defer a proportion of any bonus pad into shares whech will be held for

three years There are no further performance condiions on these sharas, other than continued employment, and the value of any dwvidends

eamed dunng the deferred penod will be pad on vesting

Dunng the year, 98,515 shares (last year 288,656) have been awarded under the plan in relation to the annua bonus The far value of
the shares awarded was 286 1p (ast year 381 6p) As at 3 Apnl 2010, 307,300 shares (ast year 3,084,935) were outstanding under
the scheme |

E Restncted Share Plan

The Restncted Share Plan was established in 2000 as part of the reward strategy for retention and recrutment of senior managers who are wial to
the success of the business The plan operates for senior managers below executive director level Awards under the plan are made as pan of
ongoing reviews of reward packages, and for recrutment The shares are held in trust for a penod of between one and three years, at which point
they are released to the employee, subject to them still being in employment The value of any dividends eamed dunng the restncted penod wil
also be pad at the ume of vesting

Dunng the year, 342,600 shares {last year 1,755,667) have been awarded under the plan The weighted average farr value of the shares awarded
was 348 6p (last year 337 8p)

F United Kingdom Share Incentive Plan
The Shara Incentive Plan 1s a discretionary, all-employee plan, approved by HMRC, under wihich Freashares may be allocated by the Company
The last award was made n June 2003, which vestad in Jung 2008

G Share NMatching Deal Plan

The Share Matching Deal Plan was introduced in 2008 for those employees who were eligble to receve a cash-only borus The scheme was not
open to those employees who participated in the Defesred Share Bonus Plan The plan allows employees to invest a proportion of ther bonus In
shares of the Company These nvastment shares must be hefd by the participant for three years, dunng which tme they will receve dvidends At
the end of the three year holding panod, if the participant 1s stil in employment with the Company, and still holds the investment shares, they wil
receve one matching share for every four that they bought

No shares were awarded under the Share Matching Deal Plan dunng the year As at 3 Apnl 2010, 22,000 shares (last year 53,000) were
outstanding under the scheme

H Repubhe of lreland Save As You Earmn Scheme

Sharesave, the Company's Save As You Earn Scheme was introduced in 2009 to all employees in the Republic of Ireland for a 10 year penod,
after approval by shareholders at the 2008 AGM The scheme is sulgject to Insh Revenue rules which limit the masimum monthly saving to €500
per month The Company chose in 2009 to set a monthly savings cap of €320 per month to align the maxmum savings amount allowed within the
UK scheme When the savings contract 1 started, options are granted to acquire the number of shares that the total savings will buy when the
contract matures, at a discounted price set at the start of the scheme The price at which the options may be offered is 80% of the average mid-
market pnce for three consecutive days preceding the offer date Options cannot normally be exercised until 2 minimum of three years has

elapsed

Dunng the year, 287,235 options were granted, at a far valus of 113 1p

I. Marks and Spencer Employee Benefit Trust

The Marks and Spencer Employee Benefit Trust (the Trust) holds 7,209,755 {last year 4,203,250) shares with a book value of £24 1m

(last year £27 8m) and a market value of £27 1m (ast year £11 1m) These shares were acquired by the Trust n the market The Trust used funds
provided by Marks and Spencer plc to meet the Group's obligations Awards are granted to employees at the discretion of Marks and Spencer ple
and shares awarded to employees by the Trust in accordance with the wishes of Marks and Spencer plc under senior executive share schemes,
ncluding the Restrnicted Share Plan Dividends are waived on all of these plans except for the Deferred Borus Share Plan and Restrcted Share
Plan where dmdends are pard via a Dmidend Reinvestment Pian for awards made in the form of foriertable shares
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12 Intangible assets

Computer
software
Compuier under
Goodwil Brands software  development Total
£m tm &m £m £m
At 29 March 2008
Cost or valuation 1179 800 8§29 780 3588
Accumulated amortisation - {18 7) (34 6) - (53 3)
Net book value 1179 613 483 780 3055
Year ended 28 March 2009
Opening net book value 1179 613 483 780 3055
Additons 13 - 19 1188 1220
Transfers - - 180 (180 -
Exchange difference - - 01 - 01
Amortisation charge - 53 (22 0} - 273
Closing net book value 1182 560 48 3 1788 4003
At 28 March 2009
Cost or valuation 1192 800C 1029 1788 4809
Accumulated amorusation - (24 0) (56 6) - (80 6)
Net book value 1192 560 463 1788 4003
Year ended 3 Apnl 2010
Opening net book value 1192 560 46.3 1788 400.3
Additions ) 83 - 20.6 569 858
Transfers - - 1157 {115.7) -
Exchange difference 04 - - - 04
Amortisation charge - (53) (28 4) - {337}
Closing net book value 127.9 507 1542 120.0 452.8
At 3 Apnl 2010
Cost or valuation - 127.9 800 2392 1200 5671
Accurmulated amoriisation - (26 3} (85.0) - {114 3)
Net book value 1279 50.7 1542 120.0 452.8
Goodwill relates to the following business units
Marks and  Marks and Supreme
Spencer Spencer Tradelinks
Mannopoulos Czech Prvate
peruna BV Repubicas Limied Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost and net book value at 28 March 2009 695 344 153 - 1192
Additions - - 01 82 83
Exchange difference - - 02 02 04
Cost and net book value at 3 Apnl 2010 69.5 344 156 84 1279

Goodwill s not amortised, but tested annually for Impairment with the recoverable amount being determined from value In use calculations The
key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rate, growth rates and changes in income and costs

The Group prepares discounted cash flow forecasts based on financial forecasts approved by management covenng a three year period, which
takes account of both past performance and expectations for future market developments Cash flows beyond this three year penod are
extrapolated using a growth rate of 2%, which does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the Group’s retail businesses

The Group's pre-tax weighted average cost of capital s used to discount the future cash flows A nisk adjustment 1s then made for the countnes In
which the business unit operates per una discount rate 8 6% {last year 10 2%), Marks and Spencer Mannopoulos BV 12 9% (ast year 12 2%},
Marks and Spencer Czech Republic as 10 2% {last year 13 2%) and Supreme Tradelnks Private Limited 12 6% Based on the discounted cash
flows the valuations indicate sufficient headroom that any reasonably possible change in the assumptions is unfikely to result n an impairment

Brands consist of the per una brand which 15 being amortised on a straight-ine basis over a penod of 15 years
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13 Property, plant and equipment

Fodures  Assets in the
tandand  fittngs and course of

buidings  equpment  construction Tolal
£m £m £m £m

At 29 March 2008
Cost 25252 44733 1863 7,1848
Accumulated depreciation (1038) 23770 - [2,480 8}
Net book value 24214 20963 1863 47040
Year ended 28 March 2009
Opening net book value 24214 20963 1863 47040
Exchange difference 263 214 84 561
Addiions a57 3952 804 5313
Transfars 322 1424 (174 6) -
Dispasals (58 4) (173) - (757)
Depreciation charge 92) (3725 - 3817
Ciosing net book value 24580 2,2655 1105  4,8340
At 28 March 2009
Cost 25666 48119 1105  7,4890
Accumutated depreciation (1086) (2,546 4) - (2,6550)
iNet book value 245680 22655 1105 48340
Year ended 3 Apn! 2010
Opening net book value 2,458.0 2,2655 1105 4,8340
Exchange difference {9.8) {7.5) 0.4 (16 9)
Additions 146 2443 52.9 311.8
Acquisition of subsidiary - 0.9 - 0.9
Reclassificaton from investment property 2.4 - - 24
Transfers 6.3 36.3 {42.6) -
Disposals {4.2) {11 8} - {16 0)
Depreciation charge {9.6) (3846} - (394.2)
Closing net book value 2,457.7 21431 1212 47220
At 3 Apnl 2010
Cost 2,576.4 5,0439 1212 7,7415
Accumulated depreciation {1187) (2,900.8) - (3,019.5)
Net book value 24577 2,1431 1212 47220

The net book value above Includes land and buldings of £38 2m (last year £45 4m) and eguipment of £45 4m {ast year £58 7m) whare the Group
15 a lessee under a finance lease

Additions to property, plant and equpment dunng the year amounting to £0 1m {ast year £32 Bm) were financed by new finance leases

26

Marks and Spencer ple




Notes to the financial statements

14 Investment property

2010 2009
£m £m
Cost
At start of year B i T 253 253
Reclassification to property, plant and equipment B T T 24) -
At end of year 229 253
Accumulated depreciation
At start of year {05 03
Reclassification to property, plant and equipment 01 -
Depreciation charge 01) 02
Alend of year {05) 05
Net book value 224 248

The Investment properties were valued at £24 8m (ast year £23 1m) as at 3 April 2010 by qualified professional valuers working for CB Richard
Elis, Chartered Surveyors, acting in the capacity of extemal valuers Al such valuers are chartered surveyors, being members of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) The properties were valued on the basis of market value (calculated based on subleases in place at the
year end) All valuations were camed out in accardance with the RICS Appraisal and Valuation Standards As the investment properties are held at
depreciated histoncal cost, this valuation has not been reflected In the carrying value of the asseis No :mparrment was recognised on the one
property which was carried at a higher value than its market value at 28 March 2009 The Group has reoccupied the property dunng 2009/10 {and
has subsequently been reclassified to property, plant and equipment) at which point 1s value in use exceeded the net book value The Group
received rental income of £0 8m (last year £1 2m) in respect of these iInvestment properties

15 Investment in joint ventures

2010 2009

£m £m

At start of year 13.8 96
Investment in new joint venture - 44
Dmdend from jont venture (2.0} -
Share of loss (0.3) {02
At end of year 115 138

The joint ventures represent a 50% equity interest In Hedge End Park Limited, a property investment company incorporated in Great Britan, and a
509% equity interest n Lima {Bradford) S ar |, a property Investment company incorporated in Luxembourg The partner in the Hedge End Park
Limited jont venture 1s J Sansbury plc and the partner in the Lima (Bradford) S ar | jont venture 1s ProLogis UK Holdings SA

In relation to the Group's interest in joint ventures, the assets and labilites are shown below

2010 2009
£m £m
Non-current assets 5.5 49
Current assets 61 91
Current liabilties {0.1) £2
Net assets 115 138
16 Other financial assets
2010 2009
em £m
Non-current
Unlisted investments 30 30
Other investments? 2741 111
301 141
Current
Amounts owed by parent company 26035 26193
Short-term nwvestments 2 ) 7 ) 1650 471
Unlisted investments 67 60

27762 26724

1 Other nvestments are the shares n Marks anc Spencer Group pic held for employee share schemes
2 Indudes £132 8m of money markel deposits held by the Marks and Spencer Scotush Limited Partnership

Nor-current unlisted investments are camed as avalable-for-sale assets Other financial assets are measured at far value with changes in their
value taken to the Income statement
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17 Trade and cother receivables

2010 2009
£m £m
Non-current
Other recewvables 346 271
Prepaid pension coninbutions 8.0 607
Prepaid leasehold premiums 2447 2476
Other prepayments and accrued income 0.4 14
2877 3368
Current
Trade recewvables 932 B77
Less Prowsion for mparment of recevables 4.7 @2
Trade receivables - net 885 B35
Other recevables 273 370
Prepaid pensicn contributions 553 657
Prepald leasehold premiums 85 1086
Cther prepayments and accrued income 1018 884
2814 2852

Trade recewvables that were past due but not imparred amounted to £0 7m {ast year £9 8m) and are mainly stering denominated
The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recevables approximates ther far value

18 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes short-term deposits with banks and other financial institutions, with an intial matunty of three months
or less and credit card payment receved within 48 hours The carrying amount of these assets approxmales ther far value

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits 1s 0 29% (ast year 0 33%), these deposits have an average matunty of five days
(ast year three days)

19 Trade and other payables
2010 2009
£m £m
Current
Trade and other payables 7922 7836
Socal secunty and other taxes 794 404
Accruals and deferred Income: 282.2 2495
1,1638 10735
Non-current
Other payables' 280 3 2438

1 Inchudes the far value of the put opbion over the 49% minoaty INterest In the share capital of Marks and Spencer Czech Republic a s £83 5m (ast year £56 3m) exercsabla on
4 Apnl 2013
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20 Borrowings and other financial habiltties

2010 2009
£m tm
Current

Bank loans and overdrafts’ | 2495 1479
Syndicated bank facility? 2198 7812
Finance lease labilites 136 137
482 9 942 8
Partnership liabdity to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (see note 24) 719 719
5548 10147

Non-current
Bank loans 179 12
6 375% £308m (ast year £375m) medium-term notes 20119 3146 3826
5 875% £267m {ast year £400m} medium-term notes 20128 27199 4179
5 625% £400m medium-term notes 20143 3995 3930
6 250% US$500m medium-term notes 20174 3338 354 4
6 125% £400m medum-term notes 20193 403 5 -
7 125% USE300m medium-term notes 2037 1996 2120
6 875% £250m puttable callable reset medium-term notes 2037% TTTTT T 28300 2526
Finance lease labites - - T N o T T 762 882
22780 21179
Partnershep fiabiity to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (see note 24) T o - 680
22780 21859
Total 28328 32006

Bank loans and overdrafts includes a £'5 Om Jast year £5 Om) loan from the Hedge End Park Lumvted jont verture {see notes 15 and 29)
Relates to a £1 2bn committed bank revoling credit faciity set to mature on 26 March 2013

These notes are Issued under Marks and Spencer pic s £3bn European Medum Term Note Programme and &l pay interest annually
Interest on these bonds 15 payable semi annualty

These notes ncude an investor put and ssuer call option exerasable In December 2012

bW N =

On 25 November the Group announced the successful tendear offer for £67 4m of the November 2011 medium-term notes and £132 6m

of the May 2012 medium-term notes incurnng a one-off premium of £13 5m on the buy-back In conunction, new medium-term notes

were ssued totalling £400m at a coupon rate of 6 125%, of which £200m have been swapped to floating rate and designated in a far valus hedge
refationship

Finance leases

The minmum lease payments under finance leases fall due as shown in the table on the following page 1t is the Group’s policy to lease certain of
its properties and equipment under finance leases The average lease term for equspment 1s six years and 125 years for property Interest rates are
fixed at the contract rate Al leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arangements have been entered into for contingent payments The
Group's obligations undler finance leases are secured by the lessors’ charges over the leased assets

21 Financial Instruments

Treasury policy and financial nsk management
The Group cperates a centralised treasury function to manage the Group’s funding requrements and financial nsks 1n ine with the Board approved
treasury policies and procedures, and ther detegated authorties

The Group's financial Instruments, other than denvatives, compnse borrowings, cash and hquid resources and various tems, such as trade
debtors and trade creditors, that anse directly from tts operations  The main purpose of these financial Instruments 1s to finance the Group's
operations

Group treasury also enters Into denvative transactions, principally Interest rate and currency swaps and forward currency contracts
The purpose of these transactions 1s to manage the interest rate and currency nsks ansing from the Group's operations and financing

It remains the Group's policy not to hold or 1ssue financial instruments for trading purposes, except where financial constraints necessitate
the need to liquidate any outstanding Investments The treasury function 1s managed as a cost centre and does not engage In speculative tracing

The principal financial nsks faced by the Group are hquidity/funding, interest rate, foreign currency and counterparty nsks The policies
and strategies for managing these nsks are summansed as follows
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21 Financial instruments continued

@ gt o s
The nsk that the Group could be unable to settle or meet its obligations as they fall due at a reasonable price

- The Group’s funding strategy ensures a mix of funding sources offenng flexibility and cost effectiveness to match the requrements of
the Group

- Operating subsidianes are financed by a combnation of retained profits, bank borrowings, medium-term notes and comenitted syndicated bank
faciities

At year end, the Group had a commutted syndicated bank revoing credit facility of £1 2bn set to mature on 26 March 2013 This faciity contains
orly one finarial covenant being the ratio of earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and rents payable, to interest plus rents
payable The covenant s measured semi-annually The Group also has a number of undrawn uncommitted factities available to it At year end,
these amounted to £105m {last year £105m), all of which are due to be reviewed within a year At the balance sheet date a sterling equivalent of
£220m (ast year £764m) was drawn under the committed faciities and £l (ast year £ni) was drawn under the uncommitted faciities

In addition to the existing borrowings, the Group has a euro medium-term note programme of £3bn, of which £1 6bn last year £1 4bn) was in
issuance as at the balance sheet date

The contractual matunty of the Group's non-denvative financial habiites and dervatives 1s as follows

Partnership

hatiity to the

Bark loans Financa MAS UK

' and Syndicated Mediurn term leasa Pension Demvatve  Dervatve
overdraits  bank factity notes habdiyes Scheme Total assets abiities Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m fm tm
Timing of cash flows

Within one year (147 9} 7812 (123 8} (183) 719 (11431 9494 (919 8) 296
Between one and two years (112 - (123 8) (169} 719 (2238 704 (63 6} 68
Between two and five years - - (1,476 8) 34 4 - {15112 1140 (83 2} 308
More than five years - (1,706 2) (200 4) - (181586 1,0038 (708 9) 2949

(i59 1) (71812) (3.4306) 2790y (1438 {47937 21376 (1,7755) 3621

Effect of discounting and foreign

exchange - - 14121 177 1 39 15931

At 28 March 2009 (1501} (7812} (20185 (1019 (1399 (3,20086)

Tirming of cash flows

Within one year o (249.5) (2198 (134.1) (179 (719) (6932 9701  (9415) 286
Between one and two years (17.9) - @4 (134 - (473.0) 51.1 {37 6) 135

Between two and five years - - (960 1) (25 1) - (9852 1067 (84 4) 22.3
More than five years - - (21155) (204 4) - {2,319.9) 900.5 {693.2) 2163
{2674) (2198) (3,6514) (260.8) (719) (4,471.3)] 20374 (1,7567) 280.7

Effect of discounting and foreign
exchange - 14675 1710 1,638.5

At 3 Apnl 2010 (2674) (2198) (2,1839) {89 8) (71.9) (2,832.8)

This table does not include trade and other payables (see note 19) due to the low associated hquidity nsk

The present value of finance lease habilites is as follows

2010 2009

£m Em
Within one year {13 6) (137)
Later than one year and not later than five years (26.7 (36 5)
Later than five years (49 5) 51 7)
Total (89 8) (101 9)

£ Cou lornarly nsk

Countarparty nsk exests where the Group can suffer financial loss through default or non-periormance by financial institutions

Exposures are managed through Group treasury policy which kmits the value that can be placed with each approved counterparty to minimise the
nsk of loss The counterpariies are Imited to the approved mstitutions with secure long-term credit ratings A+/A1 or better assigned by Moody’s
and Standard & Poor's respectively, unless approved on an exception basis by a Board director Limits are reviewed regularly by seruor

management The credit nsk of these financial instruments 1s estimated as the far value of the assets resuting from
the contracts
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21 Financial instruments continued

The table below analyses the Group’s short-term investments and denvative assets by credit exposure excluding bank balances, store cash and
cashn transit

Credit rating of counterparty*

AAAM AAA AR AA Av A
£m £m £m £m £m £m Tota
Short-term investments' i L - 48 1198 2563 299 05 1803
Dervative assets? - 1054 5386 T - 1508 98 3198
At 28 March 2009 - 1102 1734 253 1807 103 4899
AAAM AAA AA AA- A+ A
£m £m £m £m £m £m Total
Short-term investments' 132.9 1.5 16.7 2086 221 1.3 1951
Denvative assets? - 50.8 311 - 76.8 80 166.7
At 3 Apnl 2010 1329 52.3 47.8 206 98.9 9.3 361.8

Indudes cash on deposit In M&S Scotish Limited Partnership Marks & Spencer pic and Marks and Spencer General Insurance LP

Excludes dervative asset oplicn which 1s embedded within the £250m puttable callable reset medium term notes due 2037

Exposwre 1o a counterparty approved as an excephon {0 ireasury poicy

Standard & Poor's equvalent rating shown as reference to the lowest credit rating of the counterparty from ether Standard & Poor's or Mocdy s

LN =

The Group has very low retal credit nsk due to transactions being pnncipally of a high volume, low value and short matunty

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the balance sheet date was as follows trade recevables £89m (ast year £84m), other receivables £62m
(last year £64m), cash and cash equivalents £406m fast year £423m} and denvatives £181m {ast year £347m)

WO g . ety R
Transactional foreign currency exposures anse from both the export of goods from the UK to overseas subsidianes, and from the import of
matenals and goods drectly sourced from overseas suppliers

Group treasury hedge these exposures prncipally using forward foreign exchange contracts progressively covenng up 1o 100% out to
18 months Where approprate hedge cover can be taken out longer than 18 months, with Board approval The Group 1s pnmarly exposed to
foraign exchange nsk in relation to stering against movemenits in US dollar and euro

Forward foreign exchange centracts in relation to the Group's forecast currency requirements are designated as cash flow hedges with

farr value movements recognised directly in comprehensive income To the extent that these hadges cover actual currency payables or recenvables
then associated far value movements praviously recognised In comprehensive Income are recorded in the ncome statement

In conunction with the coresponding asset or liabiity As at the balance sheet date the gross notional value n sterling terms of forward foreign
exchange sell or buy contracts amounted to £865m (ast year £768m) with a weighted average maturity date of five months

{last year six months)

Gans and losses in equity on forward foreign exchange contracts as at 3 Apnl 2010 will be released to the Income statement at vancus
dates over the following 13 manths (ast year 14 months) from the balance sheet date

At the balance sheet date the Group did not held any denvatives to hedge balance sheet and profit and loss translation exposures
However, the translation exposures ansing on the overseas net assets are hedged with foreign currency debt As at the balance sheei date,
€231m (ast year €276m) and HK$180m (ast year HK$178m) curency debt was hedging overseas net assets

The Group also hedges foreign currency intercompany loans where these exist Forward foreign exchange contracts in relation to the hedging of
the Group's foreign currency Intercompany loans are designated as held for trading with farr value movements being recogrised

in the income statement The corresponding far value movement of the intercompany loan balance results in an overall nilimpact on the Income
statement As at the balance sheet date, the gross noticnal value of intercompany loan hedges was £155m (ast year £108m)

After taking Into account the hedging denvatives entered into by the Group, the currency and interest rate exposure of the Group'’s financial
liebyities is as set out below excluding short-term payables and the Marks and Spencer Czech Republic a s put option

2010 2009
Fixed Floating Fixed Floating

rate rate Total rate rate Total
£m £m £m £m m £m

Currency
Sterling ) " 21364 4100 25464 22524 6299 2,8823
Euro 86 2328 2414 76 2861 2937
Hong Kong dollar . - 152 152 - 164 1684
Other - ) o 33 265 298 03 79 82
21483 6845 28328 22603 9403 32006
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21 Financial nstruments continued

The floating rate stering and euro borrowings are inked to nterest rates related to LIBOR These rates are for penods between one and
three months

As at the balance sheet date and excluding finance leases, the fixed rate stering borowngs are at an average rate of 5 9% (ast year 6 0%) and
the weighted average time for which the rate is fixed 1s 10 years (ast year nine years)

W] nierest faim b

The Group 1s exposed to nterest rate nsk in relation to the sterling, US dollar, euro and Hong Kong dollar vanable rate financial assets

and habiites

The Group’s policy Is to use denvative contracts where necessary to mantain a mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings to manage this risk The
structure and matunty of these dervatives correspond to the undertying borrowings and are accounted for as far value or cash flow hedges as
appropriate

At the balance sheet date fixed rate borrowings amounted to £2,148 3m (ast year £2,260 3m) representing the public bond 1ssues and finance
leases, and amounting to 76% (ast year 71%) of the Group's gross borrowings

The effective Interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows

2010 2009
% %
Commutted and uncommitted borrowings 06 40
Medium-term notes 59 62
Finance leases 4.7 48
Partnership kability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme - 57
Denvative financial instruments
2010 2008
Assets Diabihties Assets babdiies
£m £m £m £m
Current
Options - held for trading 14.3 {(14.3) 270 @7 0)
Commodity swap - cash flow hedge - (2.1) - (167}
Forward foreign exchange contracts — cash flow hedges 301 (5.0) 599 (27 4)
- held for trading 37 1.4) 57 0 4
Interest rate swaps — held for trading - 4.3) - @7
48.1 (27.1) 926 (76 2)
Non-current
Commodity swap - cash flow hedge - - - {15}
Cross currency swaps - cash flow hedges 132.8 - 2539 -
Forward foreign exchange contracts — cash flow hedges 0.1 - 01 (15)

132.9 - 2540 {30)

At the balance sheet date, the Group held a number of cross currency swaps to redesignate 1ts fixed rate US dollar debt to fixed rate stering debt
The atiributes of these denvatives match the charactenstics of the underiying debt hedged with rates of 7 034% (2017 bond) and 7 238% (2037
bord) The amounts reporied as options held for trading n denvative asseis and liabilities represent the far value of the call option with the puttable
callable reset notes mirrored by the far value of the sold option to have this call assigned Dunng the year the Group entered into a number of
interest rate swaps to redesignate stering fixed debt to floating debt These swaps are accounted for as far value hedges The ineffective portion
recogrised In the profit or loss that anses from far value hedges amounts to a loss of £0 4m {last year £ni)

as the gan on the hedged iterm was £1 5m (last year £ruf} and the loss on the hedging nstrument was £1 9m {ast year £ni) There was no
Ineffectivenass on cash flow hedging or net Investment hedging
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21 Financial instruments continued

Sensitivity analysis

The table below tlustrates the estmated impact on the ncome statement and equity as a result of market moverments in foreign exchange and
Interest rates in relation to all of the Group's financial nstruments  The Group considers that a 2% +/- movement in interest rates and a 20%
weakening or strengthening i sterling represents reasonable possible changes However, this analysis 1s for llustrative purposes only

The impact in the income statement due to changes N Interest rates refiects the effect on the Group’s floating rate debt as at the balance sheet
date The impact in equity reflects the far value movement in relation to the Group's cross currency swaps

The impact In the ncome statements from foreign exchange movements reflects the change in the farr value of the Group's transactional foreign
exchange cash flow hedges and the net investment hedges at the balance sheet date The equity impact shown for foreign exchange senstivity
relates to derwative and non-denvative financial nstruments hedging net investmerits This value 1s expected to be fully offset by the retranstation of

the hedged foreign currency net assets leaving a net equity impact of zero

The table excludes financial nstruments that expose the Group to interest rate and foregn exchange nsk where such nsk is fully hedged
with another financial instrument Also excluded are trade recevables and payables as these are etther sterling denominated or the foraign

exchange nsk 1s hedged

2% decrease 2% ncrease 20% 20%
ninterest N interest weakenng  strengthening
rates rates in stering in stering
£m £m £m £m

At 28 March 2009 ) o ) o
Impact on Income statement gain/{oss) 136 (15 1} (15 2) 102
Impact on equity gan/foss) 745 (38 6) (111} 74

At 3 Apnl 2010 ) L

Impact on income statement gan/{loss) o o o (83) 25 (15.9) 106
Impact on equity gain/{oss) 330 (24.7) 29.2 (19 5}

Fawr value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial nstruments by valuation technique

~ Level 1 guoted {unadiusted) pnces In active markets for identical assets or habilities,

~ Level 2 other techniques for which all nputs which have a significant effect on the recorded far value are observable, ether directly or indirectly,

and

- Level 3 techniques which use Inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded farr value that are not based on observable market data
Unlisted equity investments are included in Level 3 The farr value of the embedded denvative 1s determined using the present value of the

estimated future cash flows based on financia forecasts

As at 3 April 2010, the Group held the following financial instruments measured at far valug

2010 2009

Leve! 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m Em £m £m £m £m £m

Assets measured at fair value

Financia! assets at far value through profit or loss

- Trading dervatives - 180 - 18.0 - 327 - 327

Denvatives used for hedging - 1630 - 163.0 - 3139 - 3139

Avalable-for-sale financial assets

- equity secunties - - 3.0 3.0 - - 30 30

Liabilities measured at fair value

Financial iabdities at fair value through profit or loss

- Trading dervatives - (19 6) - {19.6) - {32 1) - {32 1)

Denvative used for hedging - 7.5) - 7.5 - 47 1) - {47 1)

Embedded denvatives - - (63.5) (63 5) - - (56 3) (56 3)

Dunng the reporting penod ending 3 Apnl 2010, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 far value measurements, and no transfers

into and out of Level 3 far value measurements
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21 Financial instruments continued

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 nstruments for the year ended 3 Apnl 2010

2010 2009

£m em
Opening balance (53 3) {492)
Gans and losses recognised in profit or 1oss (72 @ 1)
Closing balance (60.5) (533

A reasonably possible change n assumptions 1 unlikely to result in a significant change in the far value of the Level 3 instruments

Fair value of financial instruments
With the exceplon of the Group’s fixed rate borid debt, there were no matenal differences between the carmying value of non-dervative financial
assets and finangcial labilities and therr far values as at the balance sheet date

The camyng value of the Group's fixed rate bond debt was £2,183 9m (ast year £2,018 5m), the far value of this debt was £2,107 7m
(ast year £1,616 6m)

Capital policy
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its abity to continue as a going concern in order to provide optimal returns for
shareholders and to maintain an efficient capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

in doing S0 the Group's strategy 1s to mamntain a capital structure commensurate with an Investment grade credit rating and to retan apprapnate
levels of iquidity headroom to ensure financial stability and flexibility To achieve this strategy the Group regulary monitors key credit metncs such
as the geanng ratio, cash flow to net debt (see note 29} and fixed charge cover to maintan this position I addition the Group ensures a
combination of appropnate committed short-term iqudity headroom wath a diverse and smooth lorg-term debt matunty profile

Dunng the year the Group mantained an investment grade credit rating of Baa3 (stable) with Moody's and BBB- (stable) with Standard & Poor,
and through the successful tender of £200m of existing short-dated bonds i coryunction with a new £400m 10 year bond 1ssue extended the
average fixed debt maturty by one year to ten years and increased short-term hguidity by £200m

In order to maintain or re-align the capital structure, the Group may adjust the number of dvidends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shargholders, 1ssue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt

22 Provisions

UK Overseas

restructunng  restructunng Total

£m £m £m

At 30 March 2008 182 75 257
Provided in the year o 866 - 866
Released In the year o7 - o7
Utiised dunng the year (85} 086 e1)
Exchange differences - 13 13
At 28 March 2009 956 82 i038
At 29 March 2009 95.6 82 103.8
Provded n the year ) 5.1 - 51
Released in the year {11.2) (3.0 (14.2)
Utised dunng the year {43.0) {0 4) 43 4)
Exchange differences - (0.2 0.2)
At 3 Apni 2010 465 4.6 511

Analysis of total provisions

2010 2000

£m £m

Current 25.6 636
Non-current 255 402
Total provisions 51.1 103 8

The provision for UK restructunng 1s compnsed of exceptional costs related to the strategic restructure in 2008/08 (see note 5), Including onerous
leases and redundancies, as well as costs of closing Lifestore An element of the prowision for closing Lifestore was released dunng the year The
provision for overseas resiructunng costs pnmanty relates to future closure costs in respect of disconinued operations in continental Europe

The current element of the provision pnmanty relates to costs relatng to the ratonalisation of IT and logistics networks

The non-current element of the provision relates to store closures, pnmarily onercus [eases, and the closure costs of discontinued operations in
continental Europe, and are expected to be utlised over a penod of seven years
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23 Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s calcutated in full on temporary differences under the labilty method using a tax rate of 28% (ast year 28%) for UK differences and
the local tax rates for overseas dfferences

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabiities (after the offsetting of balances within the same |unsdiction as permitted by IAS 12 - 'Income

Taxes') dunng the penod are shown below Deferred tax assets and labilities are only offset where there 1s a legally enforceable nght of offset and
there 1s an intention 1o settle the balances net

Deferred tax assets/(iabilities)

Fixed Other Total

assels  Accelerated Pension  short-term UK Overseas

temporary captal  temporary femporary defered deferred
diferences  alowances  dfferences  differences tax tax Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 30 March 2008 (76 9) (1448} (1384) 61} (367 O} 51 {372 1)
Credited/(charged} to the income staternent (20} 173 870 57 (77 4) ©2 (77 6)
Credted/(charged} to equity - - 2549 (29 5) 2254 04 2258
At 28 March 2009 789 (127 3) 285 @13 {2190 49 (2239
At 29 March 2009 789 {(127.3) 285 41.3) (2190} 49) (2239)
Credited/{charged) to the ncome statement 4.6 3.6 {19 0} 1) (10 9) 24 (85)
Credited/{charged) to equity - - 7.7 382 1099 (3.3) 106 6
At 3 Apnl 2010 {743) (123.7) 812 {320 (120.0) (58 (1258)

in amving at the deferred tax on fixed assets, credit has been taken for capital losses with a tax value of £65 5m Jast year £60 5m)
No deferred tax 1s recognised on the unremitted earmings of overseas subsidianes As the earnings are continually renvested by the
Group, no tax 1s expected to be payable to them in the foreseeable future Undistrbuted profits of overseas subsichanies amount to
£396 5m {ast year £380 6m)

The Group 1s claming UK tax relief for losses incurred by some of its current and former European subsicianes n ight of continuing litgation, no
asset has been recognised in respect of these clams

A number of changes to the UK Comporation tax system were announced in the June 2010 Budget Statement The Finance (No 2) Act 201018
expected to Include legisiation to reduce the man rate of corporation tax from 28% t0 27% from 1 Apnl 2011 Further reductions to the main rate
are proposed to reduce the rate by 1% per annum to 24% by 1 Apnl 2094 The changes had not been substantively enacted at the balance shest
date and, therefore, are not Included n these financial statements  The effect of the changes to be enacted by the Finance (No 2) Act 2010 1s
currently being assessed by management

24 Share capital and reserves

2010 2009

Shares fm Shares £m

Authonsed ordinary shares of 25p each 3,200,000,000 800.0 3,200,000,000 8000
Allotted, called up and fully paid ordinary shares of 25p each

At start and end of year 2,850,039,477 7125 2,850,039,477 7125

Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme interest in the Scothish Limited Partnership

In previous years, a partnership liability was recorded relating to an amortising liability n respect of obligations of the Marks and Spencer Scottish
Limited Partnership to the Marks and Spencer UK Pension Scheme On 25 March 2008 the terms of the Scottish Limited Partnership agreement
were amended to make the payment of annual distrbutions to the Pension Schemme discretionary from 2010/11 onwards This discretion is
exercisable If the Group does not pay a dvidend or make any other form of return to s shareholders As a resutt, the distnbution to the Pension
Scheme in 2008 remaned as a financial bability, whie the remaining financal nstrument became an equity interest The fair value of the eqguity
Interest on the date of transfer was £571 7m This amount has been reclassified to other reserves In

the year to better reflect the substance of the Group's interest Under the amended agreement the value of total discretionary scheduled payments
IS approximaiely £862m

The Group's policy to grow dividends In line with adjusted earmings per share Is explaned in the Financial review on page 43 of the Marks and
Spencer Group plc Annual Report

The agreement includes a clause such that, following a default event {including the appointment of an admiristrator, liquidatar, recever o similar
officer In respect of Marks and Spencer plc or Marks and Spencer Group pic) or on a relevant change of law, the net present value

of the outstanding distnbutions becomes payable to the Pension Scheme by the Scottsh Limited Partnership at the option of the Pension
Scheme On the basis of the expected cash flows associated with such an event, the related financial liability has been farr valued at ni
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25 Bustness combinatons

£m
Net habilities at far value {100%}) (2.4)
Net kabilities acquired (12
Cash consideration 61
Transaction costs 0.9
Total consideration 70
Goodwill ansing on acquisition 8.2

On 31 March 2009, Marks and Spencer Relance India Pvt Limited, a 51% subsidiary of the Group, completed the acquisiton of 100% of
the 1ssued share capital of Suprema Tradelinks Private Limited, which up until this date was the Group’s franchisee In India, for cash consideration
of £6 1m and transaction costs of £09m

The acquisition has contnbuted £8 3m to sales and a £0 2m loss to operating profit in the penod since acquisibon, which 1s the same contnbution
had the acquisition taken place on the first day of the financial penod

Goodwill has ansen on the acquisition dug to the cpportunities to facilitate a faster rate of growth and greater operating efficiency that do not meet
the cntena for recognition as an intangible asset at the date of acquisition

26 Contingencies and commitments

A Capital commitments

2010 2009
£m m
Commitments in respect of properties N the course of construction 690 521

In respect of its Interest In a joint venture {see note 16), the Group I1s committed to Incur capital expenditure of £0 9 (ast year £18 3}

B Other matenal contracts

In the event of a matenal change In the trading arrangements with certain warehouse operators, the Group has a commitment 1o purchase
property, plart and equipment, at values ranging from histonical net book value to market value, which are currently owned and operated by them
on the Group's behalf

C Commitments under operating leases
The Group leases vanous stores, offices, warehouses and eguipment under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The leases have varying
terms, escalation clauses and renewal nghts

2010 2009
£m £m

Total future minmum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows
Within one year 2286 2151
Later than one year and not later than five years 8152 7781
Later than five years 3,0062 31731
Total 4,0490 4,1664

The total future sublease payments to be recewved are £51 9m (ast year £64 9m)
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27 Analysis of cash flows given in the cash flow statement

Cash flows from operating activiies

53 weeks 52 waecks

ended ended

3Aprl 28 Mach

2010 2009

£m £m

Profit on ordinary actvities after taxation 523.0 506 8
Income tax expense 179.7 1994
Finance costs 162.2 2145
Finance Income (12.9) 60 0}
Operating profit 852.0 8707
Increase in inventones {74.3) {46 Oy
Deacrease In receivables 253 54 8
Payments to acquire leasehold propertes - (14 1)
Increase in payables 132.5 2132
Exceptional operating cash outflow (34 1) (27 &)
Depreciation and amortisation 427.9 4080
Share-based payments 285 143
Profit on property disposals ) T o i T 81 (64
Exceptional costs T - 1359
Exceptional pension credit ) i B - (2313

Cash generated from operations

1,3487 13727

Exceptional operating cash outflows pnmarly relate to the utilisation of the provision for UK restructunng

28 Analysis of net debt
A. Reconciliation of movement in net debt
Exchange
At and other At
28 March non cash 3 Apnl
2009 Cashflow movements 2010
£m £m £m £m
Net cash
Bank loans, overdrafts and syndicated bank faciity (see note 20) (923 3) 4202 159  {4872)
Less amounts treated as financing (see below) 7987 498 7) {159 2841
(124 6) (78 5) - (208.1)
Cash and cash equivalents (see note 18} 4229 {150) 21} 405.8
Net cash per cash flow statement 298 3 {93 5) {21} 202.7
Current financial assets {see note 16) 26724 1025 03 27752
Debt financing ) L o o
Bank loans and overdrafts treated as financing (see above) @345 @07 09 (643
Syndicated bank faélllgyl(see note 20) (see above) . o (7642 5284 150 (219 8}
Medium-term notes (see note 20) N (1,801 7) (1968 (25 {20010)
Finance lease liabiliies (see note 20) - (109 170 (49 (898
Partnersnip liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme {see note 20) (139.9) 680 40 (67 9)
Debt financing (2,842 2) 3869 125 (2,442.8)
Net debt 1285 4117 107 5351
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28 Analysis of net debt continued

B Reconcihiation of net debt to statement of financial position

2010 2009
£m £m
Statement of financial position and related notes
Cash and cash equivalents 4058 4229
Current financial assets (see note 16) 27752 26724
Bank loans and overdrafts (see note 20) i (267.4) (1591)
Syndicated bank facility (see note 20) (2198) (7812
Medium-term notes (see note 20) — net of hedgjlng denvatives {2,0482) (1,8481})
Finance lease labilities (see note 20) (89 8) {101 9}
Partnership fiabilty to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (see note 20) 719 (139 9)
483 9 651
Interest payable included within related borrowing 512 634
Total net debt 5351 1285
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29 Related party transactions

A Parent company and subsidianes
Dunng the year, the Company paid dvidends to its parent company, Marks and Spencer Group plc, of £239 4m {ast year £356 3m) and
decreased its loan to its parent compary by £15 8m (ast year increase of £34 7m)

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in
this note Transactions between the Company and iis subsidianes are disclosed in the Company's separate financial staterments

B Hedge End joint venture
A loan of £5 Om was receved from the joint venture on 9 October 2002 it 1s repayable on five business days’ notice and was renewed on
1 January 2010 Interest was charged on the loan at 2 0% untl 31 December 2009 and O 5% thereafter

C Lima (Bradford) joint venture
A foan facility was provided to the joint venture on i1 August 2008 At 3 Apnl 2010, £25 4m {ast year £13 8m} was drawn down on this facity
Interest was charged on the loan at 1 1% above 3-month LIBOR

D Marks & Spencer Pension Scheme
Detads of other transactions and balances held with the Marks & Spencer Pension Scheme are set out in notes 10 and 24

E Key management compensation

2010 2009

£m £m
Salanes and short-term benefits 7.2 47
Termination benefits 10 1
Share-based payments 26 19
Total 108 67

Key management Is compnsed of Marks and Spencer Group plc Board directors only Further information about the remuneration of indncual
directors 1s provided in the Rermuneration report in the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report Dunng the year, key management have
purchased goods at the Group's uswual prices less a 20% discount This discount 1s avalable to all staff employed directly by the Group In the UK

F Other related party transactions

Supplier transactions occurred dunng the year between the Group and a company controlled by a close family member of Kate Bostock, an
executive director of Marks and Spencer Group ple, the Company's parent company These transactions amounted to £6 5m dunng the year (last
year £5 2m) with an outstanding trade payable of £0 4m at 3 Aprl 2010 {last year £nl) The company was a suppler prior to Kate's employment by
the Group

Suppler transactions oceurred dunng the year between the Group and a company controlled by Martha Lane Fox's partrer Marthais a
non-executive director of the Marks and Spencer Group ple These transactions amounted to £1 7m dunng the year (ast year £G 1m) with an
outstanding trade payable of £0 8m at 3 April 2010 (ast year £nil)

On B August 2008 Marks and Spencer Group plc made a loan of £0 5m to Graham Oakley, a drecter of Marks and Spencer plc This loan was
repad n full dunng the year The loan camed interest at 6% for the penod from 8 August 2008 to 31 July 2009 From 1 August 2009 the loan
camed interest at 3%

30 Subsequent events

On 12 May 2010, Marks and Spencer Group ple announced a £800m funding plan for its UK defined beneft pension scheme
The funding plan ncludes the following contnbutions from Marks and Spencer

- Cash contrbutions of £35m per annum for the first three years of the funding plan increasing to £60m per annum untl 2018 This has a present
day cash value of £376m

- £300m of value through the granting of a further interest In the Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership This new interest entitles the
Pension Scheme to a fixed annua distrbution of ¢ £36m for 15 years commencing in 2017 and a capital sum in 2031 equal to the lower of
£350m or any funding deficit In the Pension Scheme at that point in time

- £124m of value through the transfer of assets from existing US$ debt hedge contracts held by Marks and Spencer plc
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53 weeks 52 weeks
ended enced
3Apnl 28 March

2010 2009
MNotes £m £m
Profit for the year 2438 3502
Other comprehensive income
Actuanal josses on retrement benefit schemes c3 {256 0) (909 B)
Deferred tax on retirement benefit scheme 77 2549
Farr value movement in equity of avallable-for-sale assets cs {30) (48 9}
Cash flow and net nvestment hedges
— far value movements in egquity 41.0 2384
- recycled and reported in net profit {116.6) (176 4)
—amount recognised In Inventones o o h {0.3) (13)
Tax on cash flow hedges and net investment hedges o T T 209 {17 5)
Other comprehensive iIncome/(loss) for the year, net of tax (2423) (660 4)
Total comprehensive income/{loss) for the year 1.3 (3102)

The profit attributable to sharsholders of the Company for the year 1s £243 6m {ast year £350 2m)
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As at As at
3Apn! 28 March
2010 2009
Notes £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets cs 2113 223 4
Property, plant and equipment cs 28791 29528
Investment in joint ventures c7 105 105
Investrnent in group undertakings cr 15769 15797
Other financial assets c8 301 141
Trade and other receivables ca 159.0 2182
Dervative financial Instruments ) T o B ci3 1329 2555
50598 52542
Current assets
(nventories T T T i N 4792 3509
Trade and other recevables B - o ) co 55585 4,8638
Derwvative financial instruments c13 537 1256
Cash and cash equivalents c10 128.2 1128
6,2196 54621
Total assets 11,2794 10,7163
Liabiities
Current habilites
Trade and cther payables cn1 44411 34090
Bomrowings and other financial labilites ci2 415 924 2
Derwvative financial instruments c13 56 1 137 1
Provisions Cla 243 615
Current tax labilities 518 590
50148 45908
Non-current habihties .
Retrement benefit defict T T o T T S cs 3530 1336
Trade and other payables N B - Tcin 2773 2143
Borrowings and other financial liabilities N | ciz 22529 20991
Denvatve financial instruments T o T T - LY - 31
Provisions o -7 T o ) T Cla 21.3 271
Deferred iax abilties h i T cis 69.7 157 3
29742 26345
Total hablities 7,989.0 72253
Net assets 3,2004 34910
Equity _
Called-up share capital B Ci6_ 7125 7125
Share prermium account 5 386 1 386 1
Capital redemption reserve 80 80
Hedging reserve 67 483
Betaned garnings 21905 2,3361
Total shareholder's equity 3,2904 34910

The financial statements were approved by the Board and authonsed for issue on 1 September 2010 The financial statements also compnse

the notes on pages 44 and 59

Marc Bolland Chief Executive

MARKS AND SPENCER PLC
REGISTERED NUMBER 00214436
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Company statement of changes in equity

Share Capital
Orginary premium  redemphion Hedging Retanec
share capital aceount raserve reserve earnngs Total
£m £m £m B £m

At 30 March 2008 7125 386 1 80 51 30313 4,1430
Profit for the year attnbutabte to shareholders - - - - 350 2 350 2
Other comprehensive Income
Actuanal loss on reirement benefit scheme - - - - {909 6) (908 6}
Deferred tax on retrement benefit scheme - - - - 2549 254 9
Farr value movement in equity of avatable-for-sate assets - - - - (48 9) {48 9)
Cash flow and ret investment hedges
— losses deferred In equity - - - 2384 - 2384
- reclassified and reported in net profit - - - {176 4} - (176 4)
- amount recognised In nventories - - - (13 - (13}
— tax on far value gains ’ - - - (17 5) - (17 5)
Total comprehensive Income - - - 432 {3634y {3102}
Transactions withowners o
Dwdends ) . - - - - (3563 (3563
Charge for share-based payments - - - - - 143 143
Deferred tax on share schemes T T - - - - 02 02
At 28 March 2009 71256 386 1 80 483 23361 34910
At 29 March 2009 B __ N2s 386.1 8.0 483 2,336.1 3,491.0
Brofit for the year attnbutable to shareholders B ] - - - . 2436 2436
Other comprehensive Income -
Actuanal loss on retrement benefit scheme - - - - T~ (256.0) (256 0)
Beferred tax on retirement benefit scheme B o - - - - 71.7 7
Far value movement In equity of avalable-for-sale assets - - - - 30) (3.0)
Cash flow and net investrment hedges
— far value movement in equity - - - 410 - 410
- reclassified and reported in net profit - - - {116 6} - {116 6}
— amount recogrised N inventones - - - {0 3) - 0.3)
- tax on farr value gains - - - 209 - 20.9
Total comprehensive Income - - - (55 0) 56 3 13
Transactions with cwners
Divcends - - - - (2394) (239.4)
Charge for share-based payments - - - - 285 28.5
Deferred tax on share schemes - - - - 90 20
At 3 Apni 2010 712.5 386 1 8.0 &7n 21905 3,2904
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Company statement of cash flows

53 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
3 Apnl 28 March
2010 2009
Notes £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations cis  1,0488 1,1600
Tax pad (115 8} (75 Q)
Net cash inflow from operating activibies 9340 11,0850
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investment in subsichary company 0.1) 22
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (319.7} (4937}
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.8 570
Purchase of Intangible assets 757 (1199
Purchase of non-current fnancial assets N
Net purchase of shares held in employee trusts j I (190) -
Interest receved T - T T ) 10 91
Net cash outflow from investing activities {4027y (554 1)
Cash flows from financing activities
lnterest paid (175.2) (1685)
Cash (outflow)/inflow from borrewings - {29 2)
{(Repayment)/drawdown of syndicated bank facility (529.4) 1081
Issue of medium-term notes 397.2 -
Redemption of medium-term notes {200 4) -
Repayments under finance leases {16.5) @21
Movement in intercompany loans treated as financing 1692 196
Equity dividends paid {239 4) (356 3)
Net cash outflow from financing activies (594.5) (428 4)
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from activities 632} 102 5
Opening net cash (118) (114 3)
Closing net cash c10 {750) (118§
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C1 Accounting policies

The Company's accounting policies are the same as those set outin note 1 of the Group financial statements, except as noted below
Investments mn subsidianes are stated at cost less, where appropnate, prowisions for impaiment

Loans from other group undertakings and all other payables are intially recorded at farr valus, which is generally the proceeds receved They are
then subsequently camed at amortised cost

The Group has adapted the exempiion to apply Comparies Act 2006, s408 A company Income statement has not been produced

C2 Dvidends
2010 2009 2010 2009
per share per sharg £m £m
Dwidends on equity ordinary shares
Pad final dwidend 53p 790 1510 2252
Paid interm dividend 3.1p 46p 884 1311

84p 125p 2394 3563

In addition, the drrectors have proposed a final dvidend in respect of the year ended 3 April 2010 of 5 3p per share amounting to a dvidend of
£151 0m

C3 Retirement benefits N

The Company provides pension arrangements for the benefit of its UK employees through the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme This has a
defined benefit section, which was closed 1o new entrants with eflect from 1 Apnl 2002, and a defined centnbution section which has been open
to new members with effect from 1 Apnl 2003

The defined benefit section operates on a final satary basis and at the year end had some 15,000 active members (last year 21,000), 56,000
deferred members (ast year 57,000) and 47,000 pensioners (ast year 42,000) At the year end, the defined contnbution section had some 8,000
actve members {last year 8,000} and some 1,000 deferred members (ast year ,000)

Retrement benedits also include a UK post-retirement healthcare scheme and unfunded retrement benefiis

Within the total retirement benefit cost, excluding the exceptional pension credits, of £40 3m (last year £26 1m}, £27 Om {last year £14 Omy)
relates to the UK defined benefit sechion, £12 3m (ast year £10 9m) to the UK defined contribution section and £1 Om (ast year £1 2m) 1o other
retrement benefit schemes

A. Pensions and other post-retrement habities

2010 2009

£m £m

Total market value of assets 4,8879 39316
Present value of schermne liabilites (5,224 9) (4,048 9)
Net funded pension plan deficit (3370) (1173}
Unfunded retrement benefits (0.4) {05
Post-retrement healthcare (15 6} (15 B}
Net retirement benefit deficit (3530} (13386)

B. Financial assumptions

A full actuanal valuation of the UK defined benefit pension scheme was camed out at 31 March 2009 and showed a deficit of £1 3bn - A funding
plan of £800m has been agreed with the Trustees (see note 30)  The difference between the valuation and the funding plan is expected to be met
by nvestment returns on the existing assats of the pension scheme The financial assumptions for the UK scheme and the most recent actuanal
valuations of the other post-retirement schemes have been updated by ndependent qualified actuanes to take account of the requrements of IAS
19 - ‘Retrement Benefits’ in order to assess the labiities of the schemes

2010 2009

% %

Rate of increase n salanes 10 10
Rate of InCrease In pensions N payment for serice

- pre Apnl 1997 2.7 26

- between Apnl 1997 and July 2005 35 29

- post July 2005 2.3 23

Discount rate 5.5 68

Inflation rate 3.8 29

Long-term healthcare cost increases 8.6 79

The amount of the deficit vanes if the main finanaial assumptions change, particularly the discount rate I the discount rate increased” decreased
by 0 1% the IAS 19 deficit would decrease/increase by ¢ £80m
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C3 Retirement benefits continued

C Demographic assumptions

The demographic assumptions are in ine with those adopted for the last formal actuanal valuation of the scheme (31 March 2009) Cne of the
most sinificant demographic assumptions underlying the valuation 1s mortalty The post-retiremant mortality assumptions are based on an
analysis of the pensioner mortality trends under the scheme for the penod to March 2009 updated to allow for anticipated longevity improvements
over the subsequent years The specific mortality rates used are based on the SAPS tables, adusted to allow for the expenence of scheme
pensioners The Iife expectancies underlying the valuation are as follows

2010 2009
years years
Current pensicners (at age 85) - males 219 212
- females 233 236
Future pensicners (at age 65) - males 2341 220
- females 242 243
D Analysis of assets and expected rates of return
The major categores of assets as a percentage of total plan assets are
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m % %
Property partnership interest 6317 528 8 13 13
UK equities 415.7 448 8 9 12
Overseas equities 1,238.0 644 3 25 16
Government bonds ) 539 127 2 1 3
Corporate bonds 25208 227380 5 88
Swaps S (2451) (2149 B B
Cash and other ] 2729 118 4 6 3
48879 39316 100 100
The expected long-term rates of return are
2010 2009
% %
Property partnership interest 5.1 71
UK equities 8.4 80
Overseas equities 84 80
Government bonds 4.5 42
Corpecrate bends 55 68
Swaps 45 42
Cash and other 44 42
Overall expected retum 65 72

Tre overall expected return on assets assumption 18 denved as the weighted average of the expected returns from each of the main asset
classes The expected return for each asset class reflects a combination of histonical performance analysis, the forward-looking views of financial
markets (as suggested by the yields avalable) and the views of iInvestment crganisations Consideration 1s also gven to the rate of return
expected to be avalable for reinvestment

At year end, the UK scheme indirectly held 232,042 {ast year 369,793} ordinary shares In Marks and Spencer Group plc through its investment in
an Aguila Life UK Equity Index Fund

E. Analysis of amount charged against profits

2010 2009
£m £m
Operating cost ] o o o
Current service cost 50.3 659
Curtailment gamn 1.0 (50}
Exceptional pension credit {see nota 5) - (231 3}
513 (1704)
Fmance cost
Expected return on plan assets (278.0) {3300}
Interest on scheme labilities 267.0 295 2
Net finance Income (110 (34 8)
Total 403 (2052
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C3 Retirement benefits continued

F. Scheme assets
Changes in the far value of the scheme assets are as follows

2010

2009

£m Em
Farr value of scheme assets at start of year 39316 49927
Expected retumn on scheme assets? 2780 3300
Employer contributions? 769 861
Contnbutions from scheme members - 20
Benefits paid (254.8) (224 5)
Actuanal gan/{loss) 8562 (1,2547)
Fair value of scheme assets at end of year 48879 393186

1 The actual retum on scheme assets was £1 134 2m (ast year a loss of £924 7Tm)

2 In2007/08 the Company agreed to pre fund £200 Om of s annual comnbution to the UK defined benefit pension scheme for tha neod three years The prepayrment 1s 0 respect
of annyual contnbutions to the UK scheme at the rate of 23 2% of pensionabla salanes up to 30 September 2010 and then 22 9% up to the next financial year It)s esimated that

approxmately £55m of the prepayment will relate to the year ended 3 Aprd 2010

G. Retirement benefit obligations
Changes in the present value of retrement benefit obligations are as follows

2010 2008
£m em
Present value of obligation at start of year 4,066.2 45080
Current service cost 503 659
Curtaiiment charge/{gan) 1.0 (50)
Exceptional pension credit - {231 3)
Interest cost 2670 2952
Contnbutions from scheme members - 20
Benefits pad {254 8) {224 5)
Actuanal loss/(gan) 1,122 (345 1}
Present value of obligation at end of year 52409 40652
Analysed as
Present value of pension scheme llabilities 52249 4,0489
Unfunded pensicn plans 04 05
Post-retirernent healthcare 156 158
Present value of obligation at end of year 52409 40852
H. Cumulative actuanal gains and losses recognised in equity
2010 2009
£m £m
Loss at start of year (1,252 9) (343 3)
Net actuanal losses recogrised in the year (256 0) (909 6)
Loss at end of year (1,508 9) (1,252 9)
I History of expenence gains and losses
2010 2000 2008
Em £m £m
Experience adjustments ansing on scheme assets 856.2 (1,254 7) 4100}
Expenence gans ansing on scheme habilites 30.0 810 61 5)
Changes in assumptions underiying the present value of scheme liabiities (1,142.2) 2641 1,078 6
Actuanal losses recognised in equity {256 0) (909 6) 607 1
Fair value of scheme assets ) 48879 393168 49927
Present value of scheme liabiites (5,224.9) (4.0652) (4,5080)
Pension scheme deficit (337.0) {133 6) 4847
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C4 Share-based payments

Disclosures for the Company are not provided here as the impact on the Income statement, and the assets and labilties of the Company are not
matenally dissimitar to that of note 11 In the Company’s consolidated financial statements

C5 Intangible assets

Computer
software
Computer under
software development Total
£m £m £m
At 29 March 2008
Cost or valuation 816 779 1595
Accumutated amortisation {34 3) - (34 3)
Net book value 47 3 779 1252
Year ended 28 March 2009
Opening net book value 47 3 779 1252
Additions 11 1187 1198
Transfers 180 (180) -
Amortisation charge (216} - 216}
Closing net book value 44 8 1786 2234
At 28 March 2009
Cost or valuation 1007 1786 2793
Accumulated amortisation (65 9) - H59)
Net book value 44 8 1786 223 4
Year ended 3 Apnl 2010
Opening net book value 448 178.6 2234
Additions 18.6 671 75.7
Transfers 1157 {115.7) -
Amortisation charge (27 8) - {27.8)
Closing net bock value 1513 120.0 27113
At 3 Apnl 2010
Cost or valuation 2351 120.0 355 1
Accumulated amorisation (83 8) - (83 8)
Net book value 151.3 120.0 27113

Computer software and software under development are internally generated Computer software (s amortised on a straight-line basis over a

penod of three to ten years
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C6 Propenty, plant and equipment

Fixiures, Assetsinthe
Land and  fitings and course of

buldings  equipment  constuction Total
£m £m £m £m

At 29 March 2008
Cost 9227 4,0267 1574 5,106 8
Accumulated depreciation (76 0) (2,144 5} - (2,2205)
Net book value 8467 1,8822 1574 2,886 3
Year ended 28 March 2009 ) }
Opening net book value 8467 1,8822 1574 28863
Addtions ) 208 3748 723 467 9
Transfers ’ ’ - 130 1012 (1142 -
Disposals (55 6) 49 - {60 5}
Depreciation charge (2 5} (338 4) - {340 9)
Closing net book value 8224 20149 1155 2,9528
At 28 March 2009
Cost ) 8988 4,370 1 1165 5,384 4
Aécumulated depreciation ) (76 4) (2,355 2) - (2,431 6}
Net book value 8224 20149 1155 29528
Year ended 3 Apnl 2010 i
Opening net book value ) S ) 8224 12,0149 1155 29528
Addtions ) o 108 231.2 422 2842
Transfers T T ] 161 227  {388) -
Disposals T o 62 (20) - (82)
Depreciation charge o T N o ) (20) {3477) - (348.7)
Closing net book value 8411 11,9191 1189 2,8791
At 3 Apnl 2010 _-
Cost - N - 9194 4,5083 1189 56366
Accumulated depreciation T - T (783) {2,6792) - (2,757.5)
Net book value 8411 19191 1189 2,87941

The net book value above includes land and buldings of £38 2m (ast year £38 4m) and equipment of £45 3m {ast year £58 7m) where the
Group Is a lessee under a finance lease

Additions to property, plant and equipment dunng the year amounting to £0 im (last year £32 8m) were financed by new finance lzases

C7 Investments

A. Investments 1n joint ventures

2010 2009

£m £m

Opening net book value 105 61
Addtions T i . T - 4.4
Net book value at start and end of year 10.5 i05
Cost o o 105 105
Accumulated provision o o - -
Net book value 10.5 1056

The jont ventures represent a 50% equity nterest in Hedge End Park Limited, a property investment company incorporated in Great Brtan, and
a 50% equity 1nterest in Lima (Bradford) S a r1, a property investment company incorporated in Luxembourg, acquired dunng the pror year The
partrer in the Hedge End Park Limited joint venture 1s J Sainsbury plc and the partner in the Lima Bradford) S a r | jont venture 1s ProLogis UK
Holdings S A
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B Investmentin Group undertakings

Shares in Loans to
Group Group
undertakings undertakings Tetal
£m m £m

At 29 March 2008
Cost or valuation 1,701 8 05 17023
Provision for imparment {116 6} - {116 6)
MNet book value 1,585 2 056 1,6857
Year ended 28 March 2009
Opening net book value o i 1,685 2 05 1,5857
Additions S T - ) T 7 TR T T T - T o2
Provision for imparment B2 - 82
Closing net book value 1,679 2 05 145797
At 28 March 2009
Cost or valuation o T 1,704 0 06 1,7045
Provision for mparment h T oo (124 8) - (1248
Net book value 1,679 2 05 15797
Year ended 3 Apnl 2010
Opening net book value 1,579 2 05 1,577
Additions ) S 40 2 402
Provision for impairment i T e - 43 0) - 43 0)
Closing net book value 1,576 4 05 1,5769
At 3 Apnl 2010
Cost or valuation 1,739.0 05 17395
Provision for impairment {162 6) - {162 6)
Net book value 1,576 4 05 1,576.9

The additions dunng the year pnncipally refate to an addtonal Investment in The ZIP Project Lirmited which was subsequently impaired as the

company entered administration

C Principal subsidiary undertakings

The Company’s pnncipal subsidiary undertakings are set out below A schedule of Interests In alt undertakings 1s filed with the Arnual Retum

Proportion of voting nghts

and shares held by

Principal actty Country of incorporation and operatien Company A subsichary

Marks and Spencer International Holdings Limited Hclding Company Great Bntan 100% -
Marks and Spencer (Nederland) BV~ Holding Company The Netherlands - 100%
Marks and Spencer Marinopoulos BV "7 Holding Company The Netherlands ~ - 50%
Marks and Spencer Czech Republicas " Retalng T CzechRepubic. T - 51%
Marks and Spencer (refand) Limited Retaiing Republic of Ireland - 100%
Marks and Spencer {Asia Pacific) Limited Retailing Heng Kong - 100%
Marks and Spencer Simply Foods Limited Retaling Great Britain 100% -
Marks and Spencer Mannopoulos Greece SA Retaling Greece - 100%
M S General Insurance LP Financial Services Guernsey - 100%
Marks and Spencer Guernsey Invesiments LLP Financial Services Guernsey - 100%
Marks and Spencer Investments Limited Finance Great Bntan - 100%
St Michael Finance pic Finance Great Bntan 100% -
Marks and Spencer SCM Limited Procurement Great Bntain 100% -
Per Una Group Limited Procurement Great Bntain 100% -

Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership

Property Investment

Great Britan

1

1 Marks and Spencer plc 1s the general partner

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under saction 410 of the Companies Act 2006 by providing information only in refation to
subsidiary undertakings whose results or financiai position, i the opinion of the directors, pnncipally affected the financial statements
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C8 Other financial assets

2010 2009
£m £m
Non-current
Unlisted investments 3.0 30
Other investments! 271 111
30.1 141
1 Cther Investments are the shares i Marks and Spencer Group pic held for employee share schemes
Other financial assets are carned as avalable-for-sale assets
C9 Trade and other recevables
2010 2009
£Em £m
Non-current
Other recevables 4.4 80
Prepaid pension contnbutions 8.0 607
Prepad leasehold premiums 146.6 149 5
159.0 2182
Current
Trade recewables 91.7 846
Less Provision for impairment of recevables @an 4 0)
Trade recevables — net 870 806
Other receivables 122 138
Prepaid pension contributions 553 657
Prepad leasehold premums _ ) ) 27 28
Other prepayments and accrued income B o ] 92.0 825
Amounts owed by parent company o o 28035 26193
Amounts owed by subsidiary companies T i ’ 2,7058 1,999 1

5,658.5 48638

Trade recewables that were past due but not imparred amounted to £0 7m {ast year £3 9m} and are mainly stering denominated The directors
consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recewvables approximates therr far value

As at 3 April 2010, £845 5m {last year £741 3m} of the intercompany recevable 1s interest bearng  Cverall the nterest received dunng the year
was £11 9m {ast year £36 5m}  Interest rates are set within iIndividual intercompany loan agreements however are approximately 10 ine with
LIBOR Theremaning £4,463 8m (ast year £3,877 1m} of intercompany receivables are interest-free

€10 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes short-term deposits with banks and other financial institutions, with an inial matunty of three months or fess

and credit card payment received within 48 hours The carrying amount of these assets approximates therr far value

The effective Interest rate on short-term bank deposits s 0 3% {ast year 0 4%), these deposits have an average matunty of five days (ast year five
days)

Cash and cash equvalents included In the cash flow statement comanse the following balance sheet amounts

2010 2009
£m £m

Cash at bank and in hand B 1282 1128
Bank loans and overdrafts ST o S o {2082) (146 6)
Syndicated bank facility T T ’ {2198) (784 2)
Bank loans and overdrafis treated as fnancng = oottt TmeT T T T T T 2248 7862
(750) (11 8)
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C11 Trade and other payables

2010 2009
£m £m

Current ~
Trade and other payables B oot T T T T 6916 5771
Social securty and other taxes T T T T T - 800 445
Accruals and deferred income 218.3 26848
Amounts owed to subsidianes 34512 25226

44411 3,4050

Non-current e B
Other payables 2773 2143

As at 3 Aprl 2010, £1,211 1m {ast year £1,080 2m) of the intercompany payable 1s interest bearing Overall the interest paid dunng the year was
£18 7m (ast year £61 7m) Interest rates are set within individual intercompany loan agreements however are approximately in Iine with LIBOR
The remaining £2,240 1m {ast year £1,432 4m) of intercompany payables are interest free

Cost of Inventones recogrised as an expense during the 1s £5,432 8m {last year £5,150 5m)

C12 Borrowings and other financial habilities

2010 2009
£m £m

Current
Bank lcans and overdrafts' 2082 1296
Syndicated bank facility? ] ) ] 2198 7812
Finance lease lablites ” ) T T - s T T 135 134

441.5 924 2

Non-current

6 375% £375m medium-term notes 20113 3146 3826
5 875% £400m medium-term notes 20122 - i T 2799 479
5 625% £400m medium-term notes 20143 399.5 3990
6 250% US$500m medium-term notes 20174 333.8 354 4
6 125% £400m medium-term notes 2019° 403.5 -
7 125% US$300m medium-term notes 20374 199.6 2120
6 875% £250m puttable callable reset medium-term notes 203723 253.0 2526
Finance lease liablities 69.0 806

2,252.9 2,099 1
Total 2,6044 30233

Bank loans and overdrafts includes a £5 Om {ast year £5 0m} loan from tha Hedge End Park Limited joint veniure (see note G19)
Relates to a £1 2bn commutted bank revolwng credtt faciity set 1o mature on 26 March 2013

These notes are 1ssuad under Marks and Spencer plg s £23bn European Medium Term Note Programme and all pay interest annually
Inierest on these bonds Is payable serm annually

(4 TN A B S

These notes INclude an invaster put and issuer call option exercsable in December 2012

On 25 November 2009 the Company announced the successiul tender offer for £67 4m of the November 2011 medium-term notes and £132 6m
of the May 2012 medium-term notes Incumng a cne-off premium of £13 6m on the buy-back In conjunction, new medium-term notes

were 1Issued totaling £400m at a coupon rate of 6 126%, of which £200m have been swapped to floating rate and designated in a farr value hedge
relationship

Finance leases

The minimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as shown in the table on the following page It 1s the Group's polcy to lease certan of
its properties and equipment under finance leases The average lease tarm for equipment 15 6 years and 125 years for property Interest rates are
fixed at the contract rate All leases are on a fixed repayment bass and no arrangerments have been entered into for contingent payments The
Comgany's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors' charges over the leased assets
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C13 Financial nstruments

Treasury pohicy and financial nsk management
Marks and Spencer plc is the main freasury entity of the group and as a resutt the treasury function is managed through this company  The term
Company and Group are therefore interchangeable in the nsk analyss below  The Company operates a centralised treasury function to manage
the Group's funding requirements and financial nsks in ine with the Board approved treasury policies and procedures, and ther delegated
authornties

The Company’s financial Instruments, other than denvatives, compnse borrowings, cash and iguid resources and vanous items, such as trade
recevables and trade payables, that anse directly from ris operations The main purpose of these financial Instruments is to finance the Company’s
operations

Group treasury also enters into dervative transactions, pnncipally interest rate and currency swaps and forward currency contracts
The purpose of these transactions 1s to manage the interest rate and currency risks ansing from the Company's operations and financing

It remains the Group's policy not to hold or issue financial nstruments for trading purposes, except where financial constraints
necassitate the need to iquidate any outstanding investments The treasury function 1s managed as a cost centre and dees not engage
In speculatve trading

The principal financial nsks faced by the Company are lgquidity/funding, interest rate, foreign currency and counterparty nsks The policies and
strategies for managing these risks are summansed as folows

fan iatdity, U ng sk
The nsk that the Company could be unable to settle or meet its obligations as they fall due at a reasonable pnce

- The Group's funding strategy ensures a mix of funding sources offenng flexibility and cost effectiveness to match the requirements
of the Group

- Operating subsidianes are financed by a combination of retained profits, bank borrowings, medium-term notes and committed syndicated
bank facilties

At year end, the Company had a committed syndicated bank revolving credit faciity of £1 2bn set to mature on 26 March 2013 This facility
contains only one financial covenant being the ratio of eamings before Interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and rents payable, to interest plus
rents payable The covenant 1s measured semi-annually  The Company aiso has a number of undrawn uncommitted faciities avallable to it At
year end, these amounted to £105m (ast year £105m), all of which are dus 0 be reviewed within a year At the balance shest date a stering
equivalent of £220m (ast year £764m) was drawn under the committed faciities and £nil (ast year £ni} was drawn under the uncommitted
faciities

in addition to the existing borrowings, the Company has a euro medium-term note programme of £3bn, of which £1 8bn (ast year £1 4bn) was in
issuance as at the balance sheet date

The contractual matunty of the Company’s non-denvative financial labiities and denvatives 15 as follows

Bank loans Syndicated  Msdium term  Finance lease Denvative DCenvative

and overdraits bark facility notes laksiities Total assets habxlibes Total
&m £m £m tm £m £m £m £m

Timing of cash flows
Within one vear (129 6} (781 2) {123 8) (77 (1.0823)| 1,67t4 (1,669 8) 16
Between one and two years - - {123 8) (14 9} (138 7) 1032 (94 9} 83
Between two and five years - - {1,476 8) 328 (15006 1140 (832} 308
Mora than five years e (1762) (18824} 1,0038 (708 9) 294 9

(1296) _ (/812) (34306) (2416) (45800) 26024 (25568 3356

Effect of &s_oauntlng and fore?gn“

exchange - - 1,412 1 147 6 1,559 7

At 28 March 2009 (129 8) (7812) (2,0185) ©940) {30233)

Timing of cash flows

Within one year (208.2) (219 8) {134 1) (17.2) (579 3)] 1,8888 (1,8756} 13.2
Between one and two years - - 441 7) (12 8) {454.5) 64.6 (53.4) 11.2
Between two and five years - - {960.1) {23.4) (983.5} 1067 (84.4) 223
Mare than five years - -  {2,115.5) (1723} (2,287 8) 9095 (693 2 216 3

(208 2) {219.8) (3,651.4) {2257y (43051)] 29696 (2,7066 263 0

Effect of discounting and foreign
exchange - 1,467.5 1432 16107

At 3 Apnl 2010 (208 2) (2198) (2,183.9) {82.5) {2,694 4)

This table does not include trade and other payables (see note C11) due to the low associated iguidity nsk
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€13 Financial instruments continued

The present value of finance lease liabilities 1s as follows

2010 2009

£m £m

Within one year (13 5) {(134)
Later than one year and not later than five years (26 5) {361)
Later than five years (42.5) {44 5}
Total {82.5) {94 0)

L " g

Counterparty risk exists where the Company can suffer financral loss through default or non-performance by financial Insttutions

Exposures are managed through Group treasury policy which Imits the value that can be placed with each approved counterparty to mimmise
the nsk of loss The counterpartes are imited to the approved institutions with secure long-term credtt ratings A+/A1 or better assigned by
Moody's and Standard & Poor's respectively, unless approved on an exception basis by a Board director Limits are reviewed regularly by senior
management The credit nsk of these financial iInstruments 1s estmated as the far value of the assets resulting from

the contracts

The table below analyses the Company's cash and cash equivalents and denvative assets by credit exposure excluding bank balances, store
cash and cash in transit

Credd rating of counterparty®

AAAT AMA AA AA As Al
£m £m £m £m £m £m Total
Short term investments* - - 16 - 17 1 - 187
Dervative assets - 1054 537 - 1506 98 3195
At 28 March 2009 - 105 4 553 - 167 7 98 3382
AAAM AAA AA AA- A+ A
£m £m £m £m £m £m Total
Short term investments - - 104 - 3.8 - 14.2
Dervative assets’ - 50.8 3MAa - 76.7 8.1 1667
At 3 Apnl 2010 - 508 415 - 80.5 8.1 180.9

1 Excludes denvative asset option which 1s embedded within the £250m puttaile callable reset medium term notes due 2037

2 Exposura to counterparty approved as an exceplion o treasury policy

3 Standard & Poor's equevalent rating shown as reference 1o the iowest credit rating of the counterparty from ether Standard & Poor's or Moody’s
4 Indudes cash on deposit

The Company has very low retal credit nsk due to transactions being pnncipally of a high volurne, tow value and short matunty

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the balance sheet date was as follows trade receivables £87m (ast year £81my}, other recevables £17m
{last year £22m), cash and cash equivalents £128m (ast year £113m) and denvatives £187m (ast year £381m)}

“PLon vaary curg ey gk
Transactional foreign currency exposures anse from both the export of goods from the UK to overseas subsidianes, and from the import
of matenals and goods directly sourced from overseas suppliers

Group treasury hedge these exposures principally using forward foreign exchange contracts progressively covenng up to 100% out to 18
months Where appropriate hedge cover can be taken out longer than 18 months with Board approval The Company 1s prmarly exposed to
foresgn exchange rsk in relation to sterling against movements in US dollar and euro

Forward foreign exchange contracts in relation to the Company's forecast currency requirements are designated as cash flow hedges with
fair value movements recogrised directly in equity To the extent that these hedges cover aciual currency payables or recewables then
associated far value movements previously recogrised In equity are recorded in the Income statement in conjunction with the corresponding
asset or labity As at the balance sheet date the gross notional value in sterling terms of forward foreign exchange sell or buy contracts
amounted to £1,686m (ast year £1,489m) with a wexghted average matunty date of five months (iast year six months)

At the balance sheet date the Company did not hold any dervatives to hedge balance sheet and profit and loss translaton exposures  Where
appropnate, borrowings are arranged in local currencies to provide a natural hedge against overseas assets

The Company also hedges foreign currency Intercompany loans where these exist Forward foreign exchange contracts in refation to the
hedging of the Company’s foreign curency ntercompany loans are designated as held for trading with farr value movements beng recognised In
the income statement The corresponding farr value movement of the intercomparty loan balance results in an overall il impact (last year £nil} on
the Income statement As at the balance sheet date, the gross notional value of Intercompany loan hedges was £155m {ast year £108m)

Gains and losses In equity on forward foreign exchange contracts as at 3 Apnl 2010 will be released to the income statement at various dates
over the following 13 months fast year 14 months) from the balance sheet date
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C13 Financial instruments continued

After taking into account the hedging dervatives entered into by the Cornpary, the currency and interest rate exposure of the Company's
financal habilities 1s as set out below excluding short-term payables

2010 2009
Fixed Foating Fixed Floating

rate rata Total rate rate Total
£€m £m £m £m £m £m

Currency
Sterling 2,066.4 408.2 24746 21125 6298 2,7424
Euro o - 2048 2046 - 2645 2645
Hong Kong dollar - 152 16.2 16 4 164

2,066.4 6280 2,6944 21125 9108 3,0233

The floating rate stering and euro borrowings are linked to interest rates related to LIBOR These rates are for pericds between one and
three months

As at the balance sheet date and excluding finance leases, the fixed rate sterling borrowings are at an average rate of 5 9% {ast year & 2%) and
the weighted average time for which the rate 1s fixed 1s ten years (ast year ten years)

e st R e ek
The Company is exposed to interest rate nsk in relation to the sterling, US dollar, euro and kHong Kong dollar vanable rate financial assets
and habities

- The Group's policy 1s to use derivative contracts where necessasy to mantan a mex of fixed and floating rate borowings to manage this nisk
The structure and matunty of these dervatives correspond to the underlying borrowings and are accounted for as far value or cash flow
hedges as appropnate

— At the balance sheet date fixed rate borrowings amounted to £2,066 4m {ast year £2,112 5mj representing the public bond issues and
finance leases, and amounting to 77% (ast year 70%) of the Company’s gross borrowings

The effective interest raies at the balance sheet date were as follows

2010 2000
% %
Committed and uncommitted borrowings 06 40
Medium-term notes 59 62
Finance leases ) 48 48

Denvative financial instruments
2010 2009
Assets  Uabihties Assets Liaplibes
£m £m £m £m

Current

Options — held for trading 143 (14 3) 270 (27 0
Commodity swap - cash flow hedge - (2.1) - (16 7)
Forward foreign exchange contracts— cash flow hedges 30.1 (5.0) 599 (27 4)
- cash flow hedges with Group undertakings 56 {29.2) 331 {61 0}
- held for trading 37 12 56 04
Interest rate swaps - held for trading - (4 3) - {4 6)

537  (56.1) 1256 (137 1)

Non-current

Commodity swap - cash flow hedge - - - (15
Cross currency swaps - ¢ash flow hedges 1328 - 2639 -
Forward foreign exchange contracts— cash flow hedges 01 - 01 (19)
- cash flow hedges with Group undertakings - - 15 ©1)
132.9 - 2555 31)
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C13 Financial instruments continued

At the balance shest date, the Company held a number of cross currency swaps to redesignate its fixed rate US dollar debt to fixed rate sterling
debt The atirbutes of these denvatives match the charactenstics of the underlying debt hedged with rates of 7 034% (2017 bond) and 7 238%
{2037 bond} The amounts reporied as options held for tracing i denvative assets and labilities represent the fair value of the call option with the
puttable callable reset notes, mirrored by the far value of the sold option to have this call assigned Dunng the year the Company entered intc a
number of Interest rate swaps to redesignate sterling fixed dabt to floating debt These swaps are accounted for as far value hedges The
neffective portion recognised In the profit or loss that anses from far value hedges amounts to a foss of £0 4m (last year £ni) as the gain on the
hedged item was £1 5m {last year £nil) and the loss on the hedging instrument was £1 9m (ast year Enil) There was no ineffectiveness on cash
fiow hedging or net investment hedging

Sensrhivity analysis

The table below ilustrates the estimated impact on the ncome statement and equsty as a result of market movements in foreign exchange and
interest rates n relation to all of the Company’s financial instruments The Company considers that a 2% +/- movement in interest rates and a 20%
weakening or strengthening (n sterling represents reasonable possible changes However, this analysis 1s for liustrative purposes only

The impact in the ncome statement due to changes In interest rates reflects the effect on the Company’s floating rate debt as at the batance
sheet date The impact in equity reflects the farr value movement in relation to the Company's cross curmency swaps The impact from foreign
exchange movements reflects the change in the far value of the Company's transactional foreign exchange cash flow hedges at the balance
sheet date

The table excludes financial Instruments that expose the Company to Interest rate and foreign exchange nsk where such nsk 1s fully hedged with
another financial instrument  Also excluded are trade recevables and payables as these are exther sterling denominated or the foreign exchange
nsk 1s hedged

2% decrease 2% increase 20% 20%
in interest ninterest  weakeningin - strengthening
rales rates stering In sterlng
£m £m £m Em

At 28 March 2009

Impact on income statement gainv{loss) ) o 221 (20 6} - -
Impact on equity gain/{oss) 745 (38 6} 153 {102)
At 3 Apnl 2010

Impact on income statement gan/{loss) i 72 {15.9) - -
Impact on equity gain/(oss} 330 {24.7) 181 (12 1)

Faw value tuwerarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial Instrurnents by valuation technique
- Level 1 quoted (Unadusted) pnces In active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

— Level 2 other techniques for which all Inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded far value are observable, ether directly
or indrrectly, and

- Level 3 technigques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recarded farr value that are not based on cbservable market data
Uniisted equity investments are included in Level 3

As at 3 Apnl 2010, the Company held the following financial iInstruments measured at far value

2010 2009
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Levet 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m £m Em £m £m £m £m
Assets measured at fair value
Financial assets at far value through profit or loss
- Trading denvatives - 180 - 180 - 326 - 326
Denvatives used for hedging - 1686 - 168.6 - 3485 - 3485
Avalable-for-sale financial assets
- equity secunties 271 - 30 30.1 111 - 30 141
Liabihities measured at fair value
Financial labiites at far value through profit or loss
- Trading derivatves - {19.8) - {19.8) - {320} - (32 0)
Denvative used for hedging - {36.3) - (36.3) - (1082 - (1082}

Duning the reporting penod ending 3 April 2010, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 far velue measurements, and no transfers
Into and out of Level 3 far value measurements There were no changes in the far value of Level 3 instruments dunng the year ended 3 Apnd 2010
A reasonably possible change in assumptions is unlikely to resutt in a significant change in the farr value of the Level 3 nstruments
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C13 Financial instruments continued
Farr value of financial instruments
With the exception of the Company's fixed rate bond debt, there were no matenal differences between the camying value of non-denvative financial
assets and financial liabiites and therr far values as at the balance sheet date

The carrying value of the Company's fixed rate bond debt was £2,183 9m (ast year £2,018 5m), the far value of this debt was £2,107 7m
{last year £1,616 6m)

Capital pohlicy
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a gong concern inorder to provide optimal returns for
shareholders and to maintain an efficient capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

In doing so the Group's strategy 1s to maintain a capital structure commensurate with an iInvestment grade credit rating and to retan appropriate
levels of Iguidty headroom to ensure financial stabikty and flexbilty To achieve this strategy the Group regularty monitors key credit metncs such
as the geanng ratio, cash flow to net debt {see note 29) and fixed charge cover to maintan this posiion In addition the Group ensures a
combination of appropriate commutted short-term liquidity headroom with a diverse and smooth long-term debt maturtty profile

Dunrg the year the Group maintained an investment grade credit rating of Baa3 (stable) with Moody's and BBB- (stable) with Standard & Foor,
and through the successful tender of £200m of existing short-dated bonds n conjunction with a new £400m 10 year bond 1ssue extended the
average fixed debt maturity by one year to ten years and increased short-tarm hquidity by £200m

In order to maintain or re-align the capital structure, the Group may adjust the number of dvidends pad to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt

C14 Provisions

Totat

£m

At 30 March 2008 o } i 182
Provided In the year S ) ) 796
Released in the year’ - T T B 5)
Utihsed during the year T 07
At 28 March 2009 886
At29 March 2009 S e 886
Provided inthe year o T 51

Released nthe year o T T T T T T (8.0)

Utised dunng the year — T ’ } B ) {40.1)
At 3 Apnl 2010 456

Analysis of total provisions

2010 2009

£m £m

Current 243 615
Non-current 213 271
Total provisions 456 B8 6

The provision 1s compnsed of exceptional costs related to the strategic restructure in 2008/09 (see note 5 of the consclidated accounts),

Including onerous leases and redundancies, as well as costs of closing Lifestors

The current element of the provision pnmanly relates to costs relating to the rationalisation of IT and logistics networks

The non-current element of the provision relates to store closures, pnmanly onerous leases, and are expected to be utiised over a penod of seven

years
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C15 Deferred tax

Deferred tax s calculated in full on termporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 28% (ast year 28%)

The movements in deferred tax assets and habilities (after the offsetting of balances within the same jJunsdiction as permitted by I1AS 12 - ‘Income
Taxes') dunng the penod are shown below Deferred tax assets and labilities are only ofiset where there s a legally enforceable nght of offset and

there 1s an intention to settle the balances net
Deferred tax assets/{llabiities}

Fixed Other

assets  Accelerated Pension  short term

temporary capital ternporary temporary
dfferences aliowances  differences  differences Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 30 March 2008 742y {1199 {138 3} 157 316 7)
Credited/(charged) to the ncome statement {03} 150 (86 9) (60} (78 2}
Credited/(charged) to equity - - 254 9 (17 3} 2376
At 28 March 2009 (74 5) (104 9) 297 {7 6} (157 3}
At 29 March 2009 (745) (104 9) 297 (7.6) (157.3)
Credited/(charged) to the income statement 4.5 59 (20 2) 4.2) (14.0)
Credited/{charged) to equity - - 71.7 29.9 101.6
At 3 Apnl 2010 (70 0) {99 0) 812 181 (69 7}

Anumber of changes to the UK Corporation tax system were announced in the June 2010 Budget Statement  The Finance (No 2} Act 2010 1s

expected to include legisiation to reduce the main rate of corporation tax from 28% to 27% from 1 Aprl 2011

Further reductions to the man rate

are proposed to reduce the rate by 1% per annum to 24% by 1 Aprl 2014  The changes had not been substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date and, therefore, are not included in these financial statements  The effect of the changes to be enacied by the Finance (No 2} Act 201018

currently being assessed by management

No deferred tax 1s recognised on the unrenitted earmings of overseas subsidianes As the earnings are continually renvested by the Group, no tax

15 expected to be payable to them in the foreseesable future Undistnbuted profits of overseas subsidianes amount to £396 5m (ast year £380 6rm)

C16 Share capital and reserves

2009

2010
Shares fm Shares fm
Authonsed ordinary shares of 25p each 3,200,000,000 8000 3,200,000,000 8000
Allotted, called up and fully pa:d ordinary shares of 25p each.
At start and end of year 2,850,039,477 7125 2,850,039,477 7125
C17 Contingencies and commitments
A. Capital commitments
2010 2009
£m £m
Commitments in respect of properties In the course of construction 65.4 291

B Other matenai contracts

In the event of a matenal change in the trading arrangerments with certan warehouse operators, the Company has a commitrment to purchase
property, plant and equipment, at values ranging from histoncal net book value to market value, which are currently owned and operated by them

on the Company’s behalf

C. Commitments under operating leases

The Company leases vancus stores, offices, warehouses and equipment under non-canceliable operating lease agreements  The leases have

varying terms, escalaton clauses and renewal nghts

2010 2009
£m £m

Total future mirimum rentals payable under non-cancellable third-party operating leases are as follows
Not later than cne year 175.0 162 4
Later than one year and not later than five years 657.5 6190

Later than five years

26360 27955

Total

34685 3,5769

The total future sublease payments 1o be receved are £41 1m {last year £561 9m)

67

Marks anc Spencer ple




Company notes to the financial statements

C18 Analysis of cash flows given in the cash flow statement

Cash flows from operating activities
53 woeks 62 weeks
ended

ended
3Apnl 2B March
2010 20090
£m £m
Profit on ordinary actvities after taxation 2436 3502
Income tax expense 1231 167 4
Interest payable and similar charges 166.6 2299
Interest recevable {23 0) {79 8)
Operating profit 510.3 657 7
Increase in inventones {119.3} 92
Decrease in recevables 302 627
Payments to acquire leasshold properties - {14 1}
Increase in payables 211.7 2282
Excepttonal operating cash outflow (31.3) (27 4}
Depreciaton and amortisation 377.5 362 5
Share-based payments 285 14 3
Provision for impairment 43.0 82
Profit on property disposals (0.8) (52)
Exceptional costs - 1136
Exceptional pension credit - {2313}
Cash generated from operations 1,049.8 11,1600

Exceptional operating cash outflows relate to the utilsation of the: prowision for UK restructunng costs
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C19 Related party transactions

A. Parent company and subsidianes

Dunng the year, the Company paid dividends to its parent company, Marks and Spencer Group ple, of £239 4m (ast year £356 3m) and
decreased the loan to Its parent company by £15 8m (ast year increase of £34 7m) The outstanding balance was £2,603 5m {last year
£2,619 3m}

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, are summansed below

2010 2009

Transactions Transactions

Trading - sales - o . (319.9) {288 &)
Trading - purchases T T 1,373.5 1,084 3
Rental expense (118.6) (115 8)
Interest {6.8) 252}
Dividends received - 05

For information on balances with subsidianes, see notes C9 and C11

B Hedge End joint venture
A lpan of £5 Om was receved from the joint venture on 9 October 2002 1t 1s repayable on five business days’ notice and was renewed
on 1 January 2008 Interest was charged on the loan at 5 25% until 31 December 2007 and 5 5% thereafter

C Marks & Spencer Pension Scheme
Detalls of cther transactions and balances held with the Marks & Spencer Pension Scheme are set out in notes 10 and 24 In the consolidated
accounts

. Key management compensation

Payments and benefits relaiing to key management are set out on page 41

C20 Ultimate parent company

The mmediate and ultimate parent undertaking and controling party 1s Marks and Spencer Group plc

Marks and Spencer Group pic 1s the parent undertaking of the largest group of underiakings to consolidate these financial statements at 3 Apnl
2010 The censolidated financial statements of Marks and Spencer Group ple are avalable from Waterside House, 35 North Wharf Road,
London, W2 1NW

C21 Subsequent events

On 12 May 2010, Marks and Spencer Group plc announced a £800m funding plan for its UK defined benefit pension scheme
The funding plan includes the following contributions from Marks and Spencer

- Cash contributions of £35m per annum for the first three years of the funding plan increasing to £60m per annum until 2018 This has a present
day cash value of £376m

- £300m of value through the granting of a further interest n the Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership This new interest entities the
Pension Scheme to a fixed annual distnbution of ¢ £36m for 15 years commencing n 2017 and a capital sum in 2031 equal to the lower of
£350m or any funding deficit in the Pension Scheme at that point in tme

~ £124m of value through the transfer of assets from exsting US$ debt hedge contracts held by the Company
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